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Lander County

50 State Route 305

Battle Mountain, Nevada 89820

Phone (775) 635-2573 Fax (775) 635-9256

November 29, 2016

Residents of Lander County

Town of Battle Mountain and

Town of Austin

The Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Lander County, Nevada

We are pleased to submit the Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report for Lander County,
Town of Battle Mountain and Town of Austin Nevada for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.

Nevada Revised Statues (NRS) 354.624 requires the County to issue an annual report on its financial

position and activities and that this report be audited by an independent certified public accounting
firm.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with county management based upon a comprehensive
framework of internal control that it has established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal
control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather that
absolute assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatements. We believe the
data, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects and that it is presented in manner designed to
fairly set forth the financial position and results of operations of the County; and that all disclosures

necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the County’s financial activities have been
included.

REPORT PRESENTATION

We arc presenting Management’s Discussion and Analysis as an introduction to the financial
information. It immediately follows the auditor’s opinion. This section provides an overview and
analysis of the County’s significant transactions to aid readers in understanding their financial
impact and relationship to the financial statements and schedules provided. This section is presented

to provide more meaningful information to our readers and to demonstrate accountability for our
financial actions.




The Financial Reporting Entity and Iis Services

Lander County was formed on December 19, 1862 and was named after General Frederick W.
Lander, Civil War hero and prominent builder of a wagon road across Nevada. Situated in the center
of the state, the Lander County region attracted prospectors fanning out across the Great Basin after
the 1859 discovery of the Comstock Lode. The County originally encompassed the eastern third of
the State and was called "The Mother of Counties." It was later divided into the Counties of Lander,
Eureka, White Pine, and Elko. The first County seat was located in Jacobsville, six miles west of
Austin. In September, 1863, voters mandated its move to Austin the following May, and then in
1979 to Battle Mountain.

Located in north central Nevada, Lander County encompasses 5,621 square miles. Over 85 percent
of the County is currently public land managed by federal agencies. Interstate 80 traverses the
County in an east-west fashion on the northern end, as does Highway 50 on the southern end. State
Highway 305 which runs north and south, bisects the center of Lander County. This highway links
the towns of Battle Mountain and Austin. The town of Kingston is located in the southern part of
Lander County on Nevada State Highway 376.

The total population of Lander County in 2014 was estimated to be 6,560. The population density is
relatively 1.17 persons per square mile. Approximately 85 percent of Lander County residents live in
the northern portion of the County.

In recent years Lander County's economy has been dominated by mining. Agriculture also plays a
significant role in the local economy. High quality alfalfa and alfalfa seed is produced. Although the
mining industry has declined in Lander County in recent years, it is still the dominant sector of the
local economy.

The County provides for the health, safety and welfare of its citizens through many programs.
Programs for health and welfare include immunization and flu vaccinations at the Community
Health Nurse Office one-time assistance with utility bills and transportation through the Social
Services department. Planning, zoning and building permits, tax assessment and collections, and
general governmental services are also provided by the County. The County also provides for new
construction and maintenance on various streets and highways; builds and maintains parks;
maintains our public cemetery; operates the library and Civic Center; adjudicates various civil and
criminal matters in its State and local courts; maintains the civil peace through the SherifPs
Department and its law enforcement officers.

The County has established various funds to account for these activities in compliance with legal
requirements to facilitate management control, or to satisfy the requirements of generally accepted
accounting principles. Governmental, propristary and fiduciary fund types are employed to record
all financial transactions of the County. This annual report summarizes the activities of the general
fund, two major revenue funds, twenty-one non-major special revenue funds, two major proprietary
funds, six non-major proprietary funds, six non-major capital project funds and 25 agency funds.
Lander County adheres to the Local Government Budget and Finance Act incorporated within the
statues of the State of Nevada. The budget is adopted annually for all governmental and proprietary
funds of the County.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit

Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 354.624) require an annual audit of the affairs, transactions and
financial records of the County by independent auditors. The firm of HintonBurdick CPA and
Advisors, was selected by the County to perform an audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Governmental Auditing Standards. The auditor’s report on the financial statements is
included in the financial section of this report. Their reports on internal controls and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations are included in the compliance section.

Those who wish to obtain a true understanding of the financial condition and resulis of the
operations of Lander County are encouraged to review this report, including the detailed notes to the
financial statements, which are an integral part of the statements.

Acknowledgements

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated
services of the Lander County Finance Office staff during the entire fiscal year as well as during the
audit. Thank you also to Grace Kemp (Treasurer) and Lura Duvall (Assessor) for all their efforts.
Thanks also to the dedicated professional staff from HintonBurdick, Certified Public Accountants,
for their contribution and support throughout the process. Special thank you to the Board of County
Commissioners for their keen interest and support in the planning and conducting of the financial
operations of the County in a responsible, clear, transparent and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Elizabeth Dias
Fiscal Officer
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable County (‘omm1ss1oners
. Lander County
- Battle Mountain, Nevada |

Report on the Financial-State.fnelits .

,We have audlted the acoompanymg ﬁnanolal statements of the governmental act1v1t1es the busmess-type
~ activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remammg fund information of Lander County, Nevada, as of

and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statemerits, wh1ch collectlvely
) compnse the County 8 basm ﬁnanmal statements as 11sted in the table: of contents.

g Mana‘ge_ment’s Responsibiligffar- the Financ_ial'sz‘ements :

. Ma;nagement is’ respons1b1e for the preparanon and Tair presentanon of these ﬁnanc1a1 statements in

- accordance with accounting prmclples generally aocepted in the United States of America; this includes the
- design, nnplementatlon and maintenance of internal control relevant to-the - preparation and fair presentation
"~ of ﬁnancml statements tha,t are free from materlal rnlsstatement Whether due to fraud OT efror.

_ Audm)r s Responszbzhty

Our respons1b1l1ty isto expl gss-an opnnon on. these ﬁnanoml statements- bas ed onour aud1t We conducted our
" -auidit in- accordance with auditing standatds generally accepted in-the United States of America and the’
standards - applicable to financial audits cottained in . Government Audzrmg Standards, issued by the
' Cemptrolier General of United State of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance abont Whether the ﬁnanczal statements ate free of matenal mlsstatement

An aucht involves performmo procedures o obtaln audlt ewdence about the améunis and d1sclosures in the
~financial statements. The prooedures selected depend on the auditor’s Judgment, 1noludmg thedssessment of
_the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those_
risk assessments,..the -zuditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair -
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audzt procedures that ate appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for tte purpose of expressmg ail opinion ox the effectiveness of the entity’s 1nterna1
control. Accorchngly, we express o such opinion. An audit alse includes evaluating the appropnateness of
" aceounting policies used and the reasonableness; of significant aocountlng estunates mdde by management as’
~ well as evaluatmg the overall presentahon of the ﬁnanclal statelnents :

) We ‘oeheve that the aﬂdn ewdenoe we have obtamed is sufﬁment and appropnate to prov;de a bas1s for our
g audlt opinions, - : . .

~

" Cebar Crry-_ . FLAGSTAFF  '* . HURRIGANE . Mesoui*n-:, .. PHOENIX * - RIGHFIELD * ST, GEORGE
Co wwwhintonburdick.com o '




Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, cach major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Lander County, Nevada as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. '

" Other Mﬁtte?s' '
- Report on Summarized Comparative Information
The financial statements -of Lander County as of June 30, .20‘15;-'.W61'é audited By other auditors whose

- teported dated November 24, 2015, expressed an unmodified opjnion on those statements. In our opinion, the
swmmarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year-ended June 30, 2015, is

consistent, in-all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has _b_eén derived.

Required S@plementary’ Information

- Accounting pf.inciples_ generally accepted in the United States of Anerica fécjﬁifé that the:management’s

discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedules related to pensions, and schedule of

- funding progress.as listed in the table of conients be preserited to supplement the basic financial statements.

Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmiental

Accouriting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for plaging the .-

basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical confext. We have applied
- certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards

. generally accepted in the United States of America, which comsisted of inquiries of management about the .

methods of pteparing the information and comparitig the information for consistency with management’s

- responses to our inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained duting cur 'audi_t '

.. of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
beeause the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or proyide
. any assurance; ‘ : R ’ Co . Lt SR

, Otherlnjﬁrma?jon _

‘O.iur audit Was conducted for the purpose of 'fonning opinions on the financial :statam.eﬁts that-‘g':olleéfivel_y
- comprise the. County’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining statethents and
- individual major and ronmajor fund and proprietary fund budgetary comparison schedules, and Nevada

- - and are not a required patt of the basic financial statements. -

Revised Statute 354.6113, as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of éddi‘tion_al‘ analysis

' The combiring. statements and indfvidual major and nonmajor fiind- ahd ‘proprietary fund budgetary
comparison schedules, and Nevadd Revised Statute 354.6113 are the responsibility of management and were -

derived from arid relate directly to the underlying- accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and. other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statemants themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, In our opinion, the combining and

- individual major and nonmajor fund fmancial statements are fairly stated in all Iiiaterial_ regpects in relation to
~ the basic financial statefients as a whole. U o : '

2

bz

EE]

L

mum

=

(20

e

za

PRSI

e

[ .

Gz LS|

e

=3

[T

wom

(SR

)

1



The mtroduotory section has not been subj ecied to the aud1t1ng procedures apphed in tho audit of tho basic
. ﬁnanc1al statements and accordmgly, we do not. eXpress an 0p11‘11011 or provxde any assurance on if.

' Other Reportma Requlred by Govemment Aud’mng Standards

' In accordance with Governrent Audztmg Standards we haye also 1ssued our report dated November 11, -

12016, on our consideration of Lander County, Neveada’s internal control over financial reporting and on ovr
tests ofits comphance with certain provisions of lawys, regulatlons contracts, and grarit' agreements and other’
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe-the scope of curtesting, of internal control over financial *
reporting and comphance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion oninternal conirol over

- financial reporting or on comphanoe That report is an integral part of an audit perfonnedm accordance wrch\_ _
 Government Audifing Smna’am’s in conmdennv the County $ mternal control Over ﬁnanc1a1 reportmg and .

comphance

-

- HintonBurdick, PLLC
St. George, Utah . .
" November 11,2016
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LANDER COUNTY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016

Lander Cotnty Management’s discussion and analysis of Lander County, Town of Battle Mountain and
Town of Auslin financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 provides an overview of the
financial activities, financial performance and financial position of these entities as of June 30, 2016,

We invite and encourage the readers to read this information in conjunction with the financial staternent

presentation and notes to the financial statements to gain a more complete picture of the information
presented,

e The net position of Lander County increased $5.7 million or 2.4% as a result of this year’s
operations. Net position of our business — type activities increased by $2.0 million, or 5.35 %, and net
position of our governmental activities increased by $3.7 million, or 1.9%.

¢ During the year, the County had expenses for governmental activities that were $17.5 million more
than the $3.2 million generated in program revemues. This phenomenon is normal due to

governmental activities being financed principally through tax and intergovernmental revenue, rather
than program revenues.

*  The County Option Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax generated $1.39 million in FY 15-16. This money is
apportioned between the Road & Bridge Dept. and Regional Street and Highway Funds. The

proceeds of this tax must be used for construction and improvement or the repair and maintenance of
Lander County roads.

¢ Lander County’s additional sales tax ratc of .25% generated $672,936 upl.4% from FY 14-15. This

money is used to accommodate for sewer and water infrastructure; primatily the Battle Mountain
Wastewater Treatment Facility.

USING THE, ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities (on Pages 14-15) provide information about the financial activities of the County as a
whole and present a longer-term view of the County’s finances. Fund financial statements begin on page 16.
Regarding governmental activities, these statements express how these services were financed in the short
term as well as showing what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the
County’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the
County’s most significant funds. Finally, the fiduciary fands’ statements provide financial information about
activities for which the County acts solely as an agent for the benefit of those outside of the government.

Reporting the County as a Whole

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

Our analysis of the County as a whole begins on page 7. Analysis of the County’s financial statements is
guided by the important question: “Is the County, as a whole, better off or worse off as a result of the year’s
activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information about the
County as a whole and about its activities in a manner that assists in answering this question. These
statements include all assets and labilitics using the accrual basis of accounting, similar to the accounting
basis used by most entities in the private-sector. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken
into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.
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These two statements report the County’s net position and changes in them. You can think of the County’s
net position ~ the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources and liabilities plus deferred
inflows of resources — as one way to measure the financial health or financial position as of June 30, 2016.
Over time, increases or decreases in the County’s net position are one indicator of whether its overall
financial health is improving or deferiorating. You will need to comsider other non-financial factors,
however, such as changes in the County’s ad valorem (property) tax base and the condition of the County’s
roads, buildings, and equipment to accurately assess the overall health of the County.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the County into two kinds of
activities;

¢ Governmental Activities — Most of the County’s basic services ate reported here, including the
Sheriff’s Department, fire and emergency medical services, judicial system, public works, health,
welfare, culture and recreation, community support, and general administration. Ad valorem
(property) taxes, net proceeds of mines tax, consolidated taxes, PILT payments, franchise fees, fines,
and state and federal grants finance most of these activities.

*  Business-type Activities — The County charges a fee to customers to help cover all or most of the
cost of certain services it provides. The County’s communication site, and the Town of Battle
Mountain’s sewer and water systems are reported here.

Reporting the County’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

Our analysis of the County’s Major funds begins on page 16. The fund financial statements provide detailed
information about the most significant fands —~ not the County as a whole. Some funds are required to be
established by State law and by bond covenants. However, the Board of Commissioners establishes many
other funds fo assist in controlling and managing money for specific purposes, (i.e., the Airport Capital
Improvement Fund) or to show that the County is meeting legal responsibilities in administering certain
taxes, grant funds or other monies. The County’s two kinds of funds — governmental and proprietary — use
different accounting approaches.

¢ Governmental funds — Most of the County’s basic services are reported in governmental-type
funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances remaining at
year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called
“Modified Accrual Accounting,” which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily
be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the
County’s general government operations and the basic services provided through those operations.
Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the County’s programs. We describe the
relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation.

e Proprietary funds — Any time the County charges customers for the services it provides, these
services are generally reported in proprietary fund types. Proprietary funds are reported in the same
way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.
In fact, the County’s enterprise funds are the same as the business-type activities we report in the
government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows.
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The County as Trustee
Reporting the County’s Fiduciary Responsibilities

The County is the trustee, or fiduciary, for numerous funds, Fiduciary funds include Agency funds. Agency
funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for other governments and organizations.
The County's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position on pages 23-24, These activities are excluded from the
County’s other financial statements because the County cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The
County has fiduciary responsibility over the cash maintained in these funds,

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information essential to the fult understanding of the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other

Supplementary information, including individual furd statements and schedules providing budget-to-actual
comparisons, are presented following the basic financial statements. These schedules test compliance with
budgetary constraints and management directives to enhance accountability at the fund and function level.
The County as a Whole

Net position is a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.

LANDER COUNTY NET POSITION

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Combined total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Current and other assels $153,115714  $149,602,095  §$12274083  $ 10,883,296 $165389,797 $ 160,485,391

Capital assets 72 820,597 63,391,342 27292 965 26,883,247 100,122 562 80,274,789

Total assets 225645311 212,993,637 39,567,043 37,766,543 265,512,359 250,760,180

Deferred cutflows of resowrces 1,826,463 1,653,767 53,188 58877 1,879,651 1,712,644

Long-term labilities outstanding 12,980,289 11,587,009 372,642 469,661 13,352,931 12,056,670

Other linbilities 2,584 562 - 5,303,937 74,981 99,044 2659543 5402981

Total hiabifities 15,564,851 i 16,890,946 447,623 . i 568,705 16,012,474 17459 651

Deferred inflows of resonrces 13,674,865 2905232 50,090 121,052 13,724,955 3,026,284
Net position:

Net mvestment in capiial assets 72,829,597 63,391,542 27,292,965 26,883,247 100,122,562 90,274,789

Restricted 56,049,125 63,517,320 4,157,636 3,507,636 60,206,761 07,024,956

Unrestricted 69,653,336 67,942,364 75671,922 6,744,780 77325258 74,687,144

Total net position £198532058  $194851226  $39122523  $ 37135663 $237,654,381 $231,986,885

For more detailed information see the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position and the Notes to the
Financial Statements.

Net Position: Lander County’s assets plus deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities plus deferred
inflows of resources by $237.7 million at June 30, 2016. A large portion of net position, 42.1%, reflects its
investment in capital assets (e.g., Jand, buildings, equipment, improvements, infrastructure and construction
in progress) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. Lander County uses
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these capital assets to provide services to citizens; therefore, they are not available for future spending.
Although the investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, the resources needed to repay this
debt must be provided from other sources, since capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of Lander County’s net position, 23.6% represents resources subject to external
restrictions (statutory, bond covenants, or granting agency) on how they may be used. The remaining balance
of unrestricted net position of $81.5 million may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors. At June 30, 2016, Lander County had positive balances in all three categories of net
position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for separate governmental and business-type
activities.

Governmental activities increased the County’s net position by $3.7 million, thereby accounting for 64.9%
of the total growth of the net position of Lander County. Business-type activities increased the County’s net
position by $1.98 million accounting for 35.1% of the total growth. These changes were the result of the
excess of revenues over expenses. Key elements of the increase are noted on the following table.

LANDER COUNTY CHANGE OF NET POSITION

Governmental Business-type
Activities activities Combined total
2016 2015 2016 2013 2016 2015
Revenues:
Prograin revenues:
Charges for services 3 2123369 5 2636973 0§ 1499241 8 1430445 3 3622610 $ 4067418
Operating grants and
contribitions 483,049 341,993 - - 483,049 341,993
Capital grants and
contributions 607,144 697,933 - - 607,144 697,933
General revenues:
Taxes 16,996 457 17,504,024 672,936 663478 17,669,393 18,167,502
State gaming licenses 138,096 142,504 - - 138,096 142,504
Net proceeds from mines 2,468,549 12,711,951 - - 2,468,549 12,111,951
Unrestricted investment earaings 2,767,597 1,731,176 109,294 10,842 2,876,891 1,742,018
Gains on sale of capital assets - 130,616 - - - 130,618
Other revenue/(expense) 51,103 311,575 - - 51,103 311,575
Total revenues 25,635,364 36,208,745 2281471 2,104,765 27,916,835 38,313,510
Expenses:
Geteral government 5,528,492 1,392,037 - B 5,528,492 7,392,037
Judicial 1,857,872 1,807,890 - - 1,857,872 1,807,850
Public safeiy 6,483,552 4808454 - - 6,483,552 4,808,454
Public works 3,272,570 2,671,434 - - 3272570 2,671,434
Health and sanitation 618,805 541,396 - - 618,605 541,395
Welfare 1,093,339 1,026,949 - - 1,093,339 1,026,949
Culture and recreation 1,714,344 1,177,401 - - 1,714,344 1,177 401
Community support 81,223 92,455 - - 81,223 92,455
Intergovermmental 96,881 - - - 96,881 -
Water - - 754,030 824,101 754,030 824,101
Sewer - - 705,809 794967 705,809 794,967
Commumication Site - - 42 426 42,060 42426 42,060
Total expenses 20,746,878 19518016 1,502,265 1,661,128 22,249 143 21,179,144
Increase(Decrease) in net position
betore transfers and contributions 4,883,486 16,690,729 779,206 443,637 5,667,692 17,134,366
Transfers (1,207,654) (4,335,759) 1,207,654 4,335,759 - -
Increase(decrease) in net position 3,680,832 12,354,970 1,986,860 4779,396 5,667,692 17,134,366
Net position, beginning 194,851,226 195051,377 37,135,663 32,879,397 231,986,889 227,930,774
Restatement adjustments - (12,555,121 - {523,130) - {13,078.251)
Net position, ending $198532,058 5194851226  § 39,122,523  $ 37,135563 $237,654,581 $231,986,889
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Total revenues: General revenue mainly comprised of various taxes and investment earnings represented
83.1% of total revenue. Program revenues are revenues directly related to service activities of a function and

include charges for services, grants and contributions, and related investment earnings, when restricted for
use in programs.

Procram Fxpenses and Revenues for Governmental Activities

The following table presents program expenses and revenues for governmental activities. To aid in the
understanding of the Statement of Activities, some additional explanation is given, Of particular interest is
that the format is significantly different than a typical Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Fund Balance. You will notice expenses are listed in the first column with revenues from that particular
program reported to the right. The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenue. The reason for this kind of format is to
highlight the relative financial burden of each of the functions on the County’s taxpayers. It elso identifics
how much each function draws from the general revenues or if it is self-financing through fees and granis.
Overall, program revenues were insufficient in covering program expenses for governmental activities. The
net program expenses of these governmental activities were, therefore, supported by gencral revenues, -
mainly taxes received and find reserves applied. Expenses were up from prior year in public works, judicial
and welfare due to increases associated with salaries, employee benefits as well as service & supplies.

The three largest revenue sources for the County are ad valorem taxes, consolidated taxes and net proceeds
of mines taxes,

Program Revenues and Expenditures - Governmental Activities
(in Thousands)
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Revenue By Sowrce - Governmental Activities

Charges for services
Other revenues 8.3%
11.5% Operating Grants and
Other taxes Coniributions
10,0% 1.9%

Capital Grants and
Contributions
4%

Net proceeds from mines
9.6%

avent property taxes
40.9%

15.3%

Program Fxpenses and Revenues for Business-type Activities

This table presents program expenses and revenues for business-type activities. Program revenues generated
from the water and sewer fund were sufficient to cover program expenses. Expenses not covered by program
revenues are supported by fund reserves.

900

800

700

600

500

400

300

200

100

Program Revenues and Expenditures - Business-Type Activities
(in Thousnnds)

“Water Sewer Communication Site

10

A, mEm PR

e

R

oo ]

[



The County’s Funds

Lander County uses fund accounting and budgetary integration to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds: The focus of the County’s governmental funds s to provide information on current
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County’s
current funding requirements. In particular, unrestricted fund balance serves as a useful measure of net
resources available for appropriation at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the current fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$138.6 million, a decrease of $5.2 million over the prior fiscal year.

The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned
fund balance of the General Fund was $37.5 million. As a measure of liquidity, it is useful to compare the
unassigned fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 348% of total fund
expenditures, including transfers out.

The CCP Fund was created under the authority granted under Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 354.6113,
This statute provides for the construction of capital projects included within the plan for capital
improvements prepared in accordance with NRS 350,013, Revenues of the fund include net proceeds of
mines taxes and investment earnings. The ending fund balance is $43.2 million, a decrease of $7,408,515
from the prior fiscal year. This decrease was derived from a decrease in the amount of net proceeds received
by the county. Portions of these funds will be designated for construction of a tew Lander County
Recreation Center and the construction of the Battle Mountain evee Project.

Proprietary Fund siatements provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail. They are accounted for by using full accrual; therefore, no reconciliation is
required to the government-wide level,

The Battle Mountain Town Water and Sewer Funds were established to account for county-owned and
operated water and sewer systems serving the Town of Battle Mountain. The fiscal year 2015-2016 operating
gain for the water system was $12,415 and net position of the fund increased by $143,508. The operating
gain for the sewer system was §13,787 and net position of the fund increased by $1.87 million.

General Yund Budgetary Highlights

Functions represent the legal level of budgetary control. The final budget appropriation was $15,016,463

being the same as the original approved budget. Actual expenditures were 70.8% of appropriations and $4.4
million less than the final budget.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30,
2016 is $100.1 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
improvements other than buildings, building and improvements, equipment, vehicles, construction work in
progress and infrastructure. The total increase in the County’s investment in capital assets for the current
fiscal year was 10.9%.

1




This year’s 10.9% increase in both governmental and business-type activities is due to net current year
additions and depreciation expense.

Detailed information on the County’s capital assets can be found in Note 6, page 40 of this report.
Long -Term Debt

Lander County has no debt.

Economic Factors and Nex{ Year’s Budgets and Rates

Lander County has been fortunate through the past year of continued sluggish economic performance and
has not had to face workforce curtailments or layoffs. The County’s principle industry — mining — continues
to prosper with growth in production as well as continmally increasing prices for metals in global markets,
The net proceeds of mines taxes received by Lander County was, once again, higher than anticipated this
fiscal year, We are fully aware that the mines in Lander County are subject to the ups and downs predicated
on the prices of metals produced in Lander County.

Regardless of the current circumstance of economic prosperity and realized revenues (in general) being
higher than anticipated, Lander County continues to employ a conservative approach to budgeting and fiscal
management. The course for current and future County budgets and financial management is to apply
financial resources to improve community infrastructure and construction of projects to benefit the County’s
citizens and taxpayers many years into the future.

Contacting the County’s Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the County’s finances and to show the County’s accountability for the money it receives. If you

have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Finance Department af
50 State Route 305, Battle Mountain, NV. 89820
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LANDER COUNTY
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2016
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities ‘Total

Assets

Cash and investments

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)

Inventory

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

Capital assets being depreciated, net of

accumulated depreciation
Eguipment and vehicles
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings
Infrastructure
Total assets

Deferred Qutflows of Resources

Deferred outflows related to pensions
Total deferred ouflows of resources

Liahilities

Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Unearned revenue
Due to other governments
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred revenue -net proceeds
Deferred inflows related to pensions
Total deferred inflows of resources

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Capital projects
Other purposes
Unrestricted
Total net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

$ 151,977,121

$ 11,983,352

$ 163,960,473

1,138,195 271,441 1,409,636
398 19,290 19,688
2,582,603 10,950 2,593,553
3,765,325 532,327 4,297,652
7,831,516 400,646 8,238,162
8,620,392 25,567,143 34,187,535
27,435,582 715,899 28,211,481
22,594,179 - 22,594,179
225,945,311 39,567,048 265,512,359
1,826,463 53,188 1,879,651
1,826,463 53,188 1,879,651
2,350,277 74,981 2,425,258
76,388 - 76,888

159 - 159
157,238 - 157,238
12,980,289 372,642 13,352,031
15,564,851 447,623 16,012,474
11,954,801 - 11,954,801
1,720,064 50,000 1,770,154
13,674,365 50,000 13,724,955
72,829,597 27,292,965 100,122,562
43,206,311 - 43,206,311
12,842 814 4,157,636 17,000,450
69,653,336 7,671,922 77,325,258

$ 198,532,058

$ 39,122,523

$ 237,654,581
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LANDER COUNTY
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2016
Other Total
General CCPp Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds

Assets

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Property taxes receivable
Due from other governments
Inventory

Total assets
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Retainage payable
Unearned revenue
Due fo other governments

Total ligbilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred revenue - net proceeds
Unavailable revenus - property taxes

Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Invenfory
Restricted for;
General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Welfare
Community support
Capital projects
Committed for:
Retiree insurance
General government
Culture and recreation
Health and sanitation
Capital projects
Assigned for:
Other purposes
FY2017 budget appropriation
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and find balances

$ 41,262,731

$ 53,357,806

$ 57,356,584

¥ 151,977,121

85,015 - 28,719 113,734
84,330 - 22,730 107,060
631,247 - 286,154 917,401
- - 398 398

¥ 42,063,323

¥ 53,357,806

§ 57,694,585

$ 153,115,714

$ 370,249

H 930,026 § 753,127 § 2,053,402

158,288 - 46,183 224,47

- 72,404 - 72,404

- - 76,888 76,888

32 - 127 159
528,569 1,002,430 896,325 2,427,324
591,657 9,149,065 2,214,079 11,954,801
75,104 - 18,733 93,837
666,761 9,149,065 2,232,812 12,043,638

- - 398 398

- - 2,134,565 2,134,565

- . 241,511 241,511

22,720 - 195,061 217,781

- - 2,450,920 2,450,920

- - 7,546,033 7,546,033

- - 274,724 274,724

- 43,206,311 - 43,206,311
1,504,847 - - 1,504,847
- - 2,431,776 2,431,776

- - 5,991,431 5,991,431

- - 6,689,802 6,689,802

- - 14,784,639 -
11,824,588 11,824,588

1,846,373 - - 1,846,373
37,494,053 - - 49,318,641
40,867,993 43,206,311 54,565,448 138,639,752

§ 42,003,323

§ 53,357,806

$ 57,694,585

$ 153,115,714

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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LANDER COUNTY
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Amounis reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Total fund balances - total governmental funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the fimds.

Governmental capital assets $ 110,683,778
Accumulated depreciation (37,854,181)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and deferred charges or

oredits on refundings are applicable to future reporting pericds and, therefore are not
reported in the funds,

Deferred outflows related to pensions 1,826,463
Deferred inflows related to pensicns ( 1,720,064!

Revenues considered nnavailable ot reported in the funds,

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds,

Compensated absences (349,417)
Net pension liability (12,483,002)
Net OPEB obligation (305,108)

$ 138,639,752

72,829,597

106,399

93,837

(13,137,527)

Net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial staternents
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LANDER COUNTY
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Revenues

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Health and sanitation
Welfare
Culture and recreation
Community support
Intergovernmental expense
Capital outlay:
General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Health and sanitation
Culture and recreation
Comummuunity support

Total expenditures

Excess revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other financing sources {(ses)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses -

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning of year

Fund balances - end of year

Other Total
General cCcrp Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds

$  7.486,827 $ 1,951,755 $ 4,576,760 $§ 14,015342
236,753 - 43,638 230,391
3,868,892 - 2,891,770 6,760,662
915,589 - 633,988 1,549,577
241,424 - - 241,424
1,087,680 1,569,135 115,602 2,772,417
27,228 210,000 297,158 534,386
13,864,393 3,730,890 8,558,916 26,154,199
3,891,713 3,315 1,317,801 5,212,829
1,829,565 - 19,185 1,848,750
4,800,970 - 69,432 4,870,402
- - 1,751,730 1,751,730

- - 358,096 358,096

- - 1,084,625 1,084,625

- - 758,738 758,738

- - 80,429 80,429

96,881 - - 96,881

- 11,226,169 2,549,866 13,776,035

2,155 - - 2,155
9,250 - - 9,250

- - 661,643 661,643

- - 736,936 736,936

- - 33,303 33,393

- - 77,815 77,815
10,630,534 11,229,484 9,499,689 31,359,707
3,233,859 (7,498,594) (940,773) (5,205,508)
140,379 90,079 77,712 308,170
(140,379} - (167,791) (308,170)
90,079 {90,079) -

3,233,859 (7,408,515) (1,030,852) (5,205,508)
37,634,134 50,614,826 55,596,300 143,845,260

3 40,867,093

§ 43,206,311

$ 54,565,448

$ 138,639,752

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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LANDER COUNTY
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

To The Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Amounis reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds

Revenues that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as
revenues in governmental funds. This represents the change in unavailable
revenues for property taxes that are deferred in the funds.

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
depreciation exceeded capital outlay in the current period.

Capital outlay $13,366,511
Depreciation expense (3,924,456)

Pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds
when made. However, they are reported as deferred cutflows of resources in
the statement of net position because the reported net pension liability is
measured a year before the report date. Pension expense, which is the change
in the net pension liability adjusted for changes in deferred outflows and
inflows of resources related to pension, is reported in the statement of
activities.
Pension contributions $ 1,347,036

Pension expense {1,374,682)

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions inveolving capital assets
(i.e. sales, trade-ins, and disposals) is to decrease net position.

Some changes in long term liabilities in the statemert of activities do not reduce the use

of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expense reductions in

ihe governmental funds.
Change in compensated absences 3,573
Net change in OPEB cbligation (8,807)

$

(5,205,508)

(518,835)

9,442,055

(27,646)

(4,000}

(5,234)

Change in net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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LANDER COUNTY
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2016
Nonmajor
Battle Batile Mt. Lewis
Mountain Mountain Communication Combined
Water Sewer Site Taotal
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and investments b 3,104,484 b 8,638,623 3 180,245 $ 11,983,352
Accounts receivable 84,363 71,255 1,200 156,818
Due from other governments - 114,623 - 114,623
Inventory 19,290 - - 19,290
Total current assets 3,268,137 8,824,501 181,445 12,274,083
Noncurrent assets:
Land 10,950 - - 10,950
Buildings 578,846 770,298 - 1,349,144
Improvements 19,239,135 13,842,479 - 33,081,614
Furniture, equipment & vehicles 453,363 832,182 290,974 1,576,519
Construction in Progress - 532,327 - 332,329
Accumulated depreciation (3,3035,903) (5,751,641) (200,045) (9,257,589
Total noncurrent assets 16,976,391 10,225,645 00,929 27,202 965
Total assets 20,244,528 19,050,146 272,374 39,567,048
Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Deferred outflows related to pensions 26,594 26,594 - 53,188
Total deferred outflows of resources 26,594 26,594 - 53,188
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 23,030 14,265 1,080 38,375
Accrued wages and benefits 8,113 8,113 - 16,226
Custorner deposits 10,190 10,190 - 20,380
Total current labilities 41,333 32,568 1,080 74,981
Noncurrent liabilities:
Net OPEB obligation 5,362 3,760 - 9,122
Net pension liability 181,760 181,760 - 363,520
Total long-term debt 187,122 185,520 - 372,642
Total liabilities 228,453 218,088 1,080 447,623
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows related to pensions 25,045 25,045 - 50,090
Total deferred outflows of resources 25,045 25,045 - 50,0890
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 16,976,391 10,225,645 80,929 27,292,965
Restricted - 4,157,636 - 4,157,636
Unrestricted 3,041,231 4,450,326 180,365 7,671,922
Total net position 3 20,017,622 $ 18,833,607 271,294 $ 39,122,523

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of the financial statements
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LANDER COUNTY

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Nenmajor
Battle Battle Mt. Lewis
Mountain Mountain Communication Combined
Water Sewer Site Total
Operating Revennes
Charges for sales and services
Communication use fees 3 - 3 - b 13,200 § 13,200
Water use fees 764,612 - - 764,612
Sewer use fees - 716,176 - 718,176
Rents 1,505 1,505 - 3,010
Miscelleneous 328 1,915 - 2,243
Total operating revenues 766,445 719,596 13,200 1,469,241
Cperating Expenses
Salaries and wages 109,335 104,472 - 213,807
Employee benefits (36,129) (32,815) - (68,944)
Service, supplies and other 275,153 278,259 6,054 559,466
Depreciation 405,671 353,893 36,372 797,936
Total operating expenses 754,030 705,809 '42,426 1,502,265
Operating income (loss) 12,415 13,787 (29,226) (3,024)
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
County option sales tax - 672,936 - 672,936
Investment eanings 30,920 78,374 - 109,294
Tota! non-operating revenue (expense) 30,920 751,310 - 782,230
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 43335 765,097 (256,226} 779,206
Capital contribution from governmental activities 100,173 1,107,481 - 1,207,654
Change in net position 143,508 1,872,578 (25,226) 1,986,860
Total net position, beginning of year 19,874,114 16,961,029 300,520 37.135,663
Total net position, end of year 3 20,017,622 § 18.833,607 $ 271,294 $ 39,122,523

The accompanying notes are an integra! part of the financial statements
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LANDER COUNTY

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Cash flows from operating activitics:
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from nencapital financing activities:

Net interfund receipts/(payments)
County option sales tax

Net cash flows from noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activitles:
Investment earnings

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating incoine to net cash flows from
operating activities:
Net operating income/( loss)
Adfustments to reconcile net income/(loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation/amortization
Pension expense
Emplayer pension coniributions
Changes in operating assets and Habilities;
(Increase)Decrease in receivables
Increase/(Decrease} in accounts payables

Increase/{Decrease) in accrued liabilities & deposits

Increase/(Decrease) in OPEB obligation

Net eash flows from operating activities

Supplemental schedule of non-cash
financing and investing activities:
Capital contribution from governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Nonmajor
Battle Battle Mt Lewis
Mountain Mountain Communication Combined
Water Sewer Site Total
3 756,910 § 700,702 b 12,000 3 1,469,612
{283,826} (292477 (5,125) (581,428)
(153,627 (155,630) - (309,257)
319457 252,595 6,875 578,927
(161,175) 170,403 - 9,228
- 672,936 - 672,936
(161,175) 843,339 - 682,164
30,920 78,374 - 109,294
189,202 1,174,308 6,875 1,370,385
2,975,282 7A464,315 173,370 10,612,967
$ 3164484 § 8,638,623 $ 180,245 $ 11,983,352
$ 12,415 $ 13,787 b (29,226) 3 (3,024)
405,671 355,893 36,372 797,936
(55,781) (55,781) - (111,562)
(26,864) (25,723) - (52,587)
(9,535) (18,894) (1,200) (29,629
(8,673) (14,218) 929 (21,962)
772 (2,874) - (2,102)
1,452 405 - 1,857
$ 319,457 $ 252,595 $ 6,875 $ 578,927
$ 100,173 $ 1,107,481 % - § 1,207,654
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LANDER COUNTY
Combined Statement of Fiduciary Net Positio

Fiduciary Funds '
June 30, 2016
Agency Investment
Funds Trust Fund
Assets
Cash and investments $§ 3,499,060 $ 1454247
Total Assets $ 3,499,060 $  1,454247
Liabilities
Funds held in trust $ 3,499,060 3 -
Total Liabilities 3,459,060 -
Net Position
Funds held in trust for pool participants - 1,454 247
Total Net Position $ - $ 1,454,247

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the financial statements
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LANDER COUNTY
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Tiduciary Funds
June 30, 2016
Investment
Trust Fund
Additions

Investment income 3 5,369
Capital share transactions 381,660
Total Additions 387,029
Change in Net Position 387,029
Net Position, beginning of year 1,067,218
Net Position, end of year 3 1,454,247

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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LANDER COUNTY
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities)
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activitics of the primary government and its component units. All
fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund financial statements. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to
external customers for support. Likewise, when applicable, the primary government is repotted separately
from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

Reporting Entity

The County (government) is a political subdivision of the State of Nevada with a County Commission
comprised of five commissioners elected at large. The accompanying financial statements present the
government and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to be financially
accountable. Blended component units are, in substance, patt of the primary government’s operations, even
though they are legally separate entities. Thus, blended component units are appropriately presented as funds
of the primary government. Each discretely presented component unit is reported in 2 separate column in the
government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the government, As to the
County there are no discretely presented component units which are included to form the reporting entity,

Blended Component Units. The County Commissioners, by state statute, act as the governing board for the
unincorporated towns of Austin and Battle Mountain, These towns are considered blended component units of
the County and are reported as special revenue funds.

Turisdictions that are not considered to be part of the County include the incorporated Town of Kingston,
Kingston Water District, Kingston Volunteer Fire Department, Austin Fair and Recreation, Battle Mountain
Fair and Recreation, Austin Sewer and Water District #2, Lander County School District, Lander County
Hospital District, and Lander County General Improvement District #1.

Basis of Presentation - Government-wide Financial Statements

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated. The
governmental aclivities column incorporates deta from governmental funds and internal service fonds, while
business-type activities incorporate data from the government’s enterprise funds. Separaie financial
statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even thou gh thelatter
are excluded from the government-wide financial statements,

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financizl
statements. Interfund activities relating to services provided and used between functions are not eliminated.

Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various
functions concerned.
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LANDER COUNTY
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Basis of Presentation — Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the government’s fimds, including its fiduciary funds
and blended component units, Separate statements for each fund category—governmental, proprictary, and
fiduciary—are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise
funds, each displayed in a separate column.

All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds, Major
indtvidual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.
The County reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the County. It is used to account for
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The retiree insurance
fund is reported with the general fund.
CCP (Construction of Capital Projects) Frund — established pursuant to NRS 354.6113 and is used to
account for the construction of capital projects included in the plan for capital improvement prepared
pursuant to NRS 350.0035.
The County reports the following major enterprise funds:
Battle Mountain Water Fund — accounts for operations of the County’s water system.
Battle Mountain Sewer Fund — accounts for operations of the County’s sewer system.
Additionally the County reports the following fund types:
Fiduciary Funds
Agency Funds - are custodial in nature and cannot be used to support the County’s own programs.
Investment Trust Fund — accounts for the external portion of the county investment pool.
During the course of operations the government has activity between funds for various purposes. Any residual
balances outstanding at year end are reporfed as due from/to other funds and advances to/from other funds.
While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the
preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds included in
governmental activities (i.e., the governmental funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as
internal balances in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in

business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as
internal balances in the business-type activities column.
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LANDER COUNTY
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. Tn fund
financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While reported in fund
financiel statements, certain eliminations are made in the prepatation of the government-wide financial
statements.

Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is
included as transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in
business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the
business-type activities column.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and
basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as currenz
Jinancial resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or
events for recognition in the financial statements,

The government-wide financial statements are reporied using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accouniing. Revemues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

‘The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement

Jocus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon es they are both
measurable and available, Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay Habilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting,
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are
reported as other financing sources.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are
all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time
requirements, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue
source (within 60 days of year end). Expenditure driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying
expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been met, and the amount is
received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year
end). Alf other revenue iiems are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
government.
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LANDER COUNTY
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

The proprietary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. The agency fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis of accounting for
reporting its assets and liabilities.

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance
Deposits and Investinents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, deposits in other types of accounis or cash management pools that have the
general characteristics of demand deposit accounts and short-term investments with original maturities of
three months or less from the date of acquisition. Statutes authorize the County to invest in the State
Investment Pool, bonds and debentures of the United States, obligations of the Federal Land Banks, bills and
notes of the U.S. Treasury, obligations of the U.S. Postal Service, obligations of the Federal National
Morigage Association, certificates of deposits, short-term bonds of local governments and Banker’s
acceptance. All investments are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses recorded as adjustiments
fo investment earnings. Fair market values are based on quoted market prices,

Recelvables / Due from Other Governments

Receivables in the governmental funds consist principally of franchise taxes and charges for services due
from various businesses. Amounts due from other governments consist primarily of taxes due from the State
of Nevada and grant revenues due from various granting agencies. All receivables and amounts due from
other governments are considered by management {o be fully collectible and therefore, no allowance for
doubtful accounts is necessary.

Receivables in the proprietary funds represent service billings to customers and are shown net of an allowance
for doubtful accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated based on professional judgment and
historical information. An allowance for doubtful accounts was not deemed necessary or recorded.

Inveniories

Inventories for proprietary funds consist of general supplies and construction materials and are valued at
lower of cost or market on a first-in/first-out (FIFO) basis, Inventory for the aged services fund consist of
food inventory valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) basis. The cost of such inventories is recorded
as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased. For all other funds, Lander County
charges consumable supplies as expenditures against appropriations at the time of purchase. Any inventories
of such supplies at June 30 are not material to the individual funds and are not recognized in these financial
statements.

Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks,

and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental and business-type activity columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the County as assets with an initial,
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LANDER COUNTY
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

individual cost of more than §50,000 for infrastructure assets, land, buildings and improvements, and $5 ,000
for all other classifications of capital assets. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical
cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date
of donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following sstimated useful lives:

Buildings & Improvements 5-65 years
Improvernents (other than buildings) 10-60 years
Equipment and Vehicles 3-50 years
Infrastructure 30 years

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as
capital outlay expenditures by the governmental fund upon acquisition.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and se will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) untii then. The County has only one type of item that qualifies for reporting
in this category on the statement of net position which is deferred outflows related to pensions (see Note 12},

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has one type of item that qualify for reporting
in this category on the statement of net position which deferred inflows related io pensions (see Note 12), The
governmental funds balance sheet reports unavailable revenue — property taxes. These amounts are deferred
and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expenss, information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
positicn of the Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada (PERS) and additions to/deductions from the
plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Invesiments are reported at fair value.

Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted
bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricied resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted —
net

29




LANDER COUNTY
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

position and unrestricted — net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a
flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the
government’s policy to consider restricted — net position to have been depleted before unrestricted — net
position is applied.

Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and vnrestricted
resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the amounts to
report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial
statements a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be
applied. It is the government’s policy to consider resiricted fund balance to have been depleted before using
any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the compeonents of unrestricted fund
balance can be used for the same purpose, commitled fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned
fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.

Fund Balance Policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any limitations
requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The government itself can establish limitations on the use
of resources through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an assignment (assigned fund
balance).

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. The County
Commiission is the highest level of decision-making authority for the government that can, by adoption of an
ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by
the ordinance remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or
revise the limitation.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the government for specific
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The County Finance Director is authorized
to assign amounts to a specific purpose in accordance with the County’s budget policy. The County
Commission may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between
estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year’s appropriated budget, Unlike commitments,
assigniments generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to
be taken for the removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to
either remove or revise a comiitment.

The Board also adopted a policy to maintain & minimum level of unrestricted fund balance for the General
Fund at 83% of total expenditures, less any amounts budgeted within the General Fund for capital
improvements or capital expenditures. By adopting this policy, the County wishes to provide for continuing
operations of the County General Fund operations through the first month of the ensuing fiscal year,
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LANDER COUNTY
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30,2016

NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

Program Revenues

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions (including special assessments) that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. All taxes, including those dedicated for specific purposes,
and other internally dedicated resources are reporied as general revenues rather than as program revenues.

Property Taxes

All real property within Lander County is assigned a parcel number in accordance with state law, with each
parcel being subject to physical reappraisal every five years. A factoring system is used to adjust the
appraised value during the years between physical appraisals. The assessed valuation of the property and its
improvements is being assessed at 35% of “taxable value’ as defined by statute. The amount of tax levied is

developed by multiplying the assessed value by the tax rate applicable to the arca in which the property is
located,

The mazimum tax rate was established in the State Constitution at $5.00 per hundred dollars of assessed
valuation; however, as a result of the 1979 legislative sessions, the tax rate was further limited to $3.66 per
hundred dollars of assessed vatuation unless an additional rate is approved by the electorate. In 2005 the
Nevada State Legislature passed Assembly Bill 489 which provides for a partia! abatement of the ad valorem

taxes levied on qualified property. For qualified property, the abatement will limit the increase of property
taxes based on the previous year’s assessed value.

‘T'axes on real property are a lien on the property and attach on July 1 of the year for which the taxes are
levied, Taxes on property are due on the third Monday in August; however, they may be made in four
installments payable on the third Monday in August, and the first Mondays in October, January and March.
Penalties are assessed if a taxpayer fails to pay an installment within ten days of the installment due date.
After a two year waiting period, a tax deed is issued conveying the property to the County with a lien for back
taxes and accumulated charges, Redemption may be made by the owner and such persons as described by
statute by paying all back taxes and accumulated penalties, interest and costs before sale.

Taxes on personal property are collected currently. Personal property declarations are mailed out annually and
the tax is computed using percentages of taxable values established by the Department of Taxation and tax
rates described above.

The major classifications of personal property are commercial and mobile homes. In Lander County, taxes on
motor vehicles are collected by the County Recorder and remitted to the State. The taxes are then returned to

the County of origin to be apportioned based on a statutory formula,

Taxes on net proceeds of mines are determined by the Nevada Tax Commission. Billing end collection
functions are performed by the State with amounts rernitted to the County.
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LANDER COUNTY
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Proprietary Funds Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses

Proprictary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Battle Mountain
water fund, Baitle Mountain sewer fund, and Mt. Lewis communication site fund are charges to customers for
sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Compensated Absences

Agreements with various employees’ associations provide for payment of total accrued vacation time uptoa
specified maximum. Accumulated sick leave benefits are payable to terminated employees who have
accumulated a set number of hours up to a specified maximum, depending on the particular employee
association. The various agreements also provide for an employee to convert accumulated sick leave over a
specified maximum to annual leave. Employees who have earned 720 hours of accumulated sick leave will
receive 24 hours of annual leave for every 40 hours over 720 hours.

Agreements with various employees” associations provide for a longevity bonus to be paid based upon an
cmployee’s length of employment with the County. The minimum length of service to be considered for a
bonus is five years. Eligible employees as of June 30 will be considered for a bonus. The amount of bonus
varies depending on the employee association and the length of service with the County as of June 30.

The Lability for these compensated absences is recorded as long-term debt in the government-wide
statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for
example, as aresult of employee resignations and retirements. In proprietary funds, compensated absences are
recorded when the liabilities are incurred.

Unemployment Insurance

Lander County and its unincorporated towns have elected to adopt the “reimbursement method” of providing
for unemployment benefits to its eligible employees. Under this self-insurance method, the employer must
reimburse the State of Nevada Employment Security Department for all eligible paid claims determined by
the State.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure

of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed by the
County. A purchase order is required for all purchases in excess of $500.
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LANDER COUNTY
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30,2016

NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Use of Estimates

Generally accepted accounting principles require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
assets and liabilities, contingent assets and liabilities, and revenues and expenditures. Actuzl results could
differ from those estimates.

Prior-Year Summarized Comparative Information

Comparative deta for the ptior year has been extracted from the 2014-2015 financial statements and
reclassified where necessary. It has been presented in the accompanying financial statements in order to
provide an understanding of changes in the government’s financial position and operations. However,
comparative data has not been presented in all statements because their inclusion would make cerlain
statements unduly complex and difficult to understand. Such information does not include sufficient detail to
constitute a presentation. in cenformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such
information should be read in conjunction with the County’s financial statements for the year ended June 3 0,
2015, from which the summarized information was derived.

NOTE 2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between total governmental fund balances and
net position of goverrmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net position. This
difference primarily results from the long-term economic focus of the statement of net position versus the
current financial resources focus of the governmental fund balance sheets. The details of these differences are
reported in the reconciliation on page 17.

‘The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances-total governmental funds and changes in net position of
governmenial activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. These differences are the
result of converting from the current resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis for
governmental fund statements to the economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis used for
government-wide statements. The details of these differences are reported in the reconciliation on page 19.
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LANDER COUNTY
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 3. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Lander County adheres to the Local Government Budget and Finance Act incorporated in Chapter 354 of the
Nevada Revised Statutes. The provisions of this Act include the following major procedures to establish the
budgetary data which is reflecied in these financial statements.

1. On or before April 15, the Board of County Commissioners submits a tentative budget to the
Nevada State Department of Taxation for the next fiscal year, commencing on July 1. The tentative
budget includes the proposed expenditures and means of financing them.

2. Public budget hearings on the tentative budget are held on the third Monday in May.

3. Prior to June 1, at a public hearing, the Board indicates changes, if any, to be made to the tentative
budget and adopts a final budget by a favorable vote of a majotity of the Board, The final budget
must then be forwarded to the Nevada Tax Commission for final hearings and approval.

4. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) for all funds except the fiduciary funds, which do not require
budgets. Formal budgetary integration in the financial records is employed to enhance management
control during the year.

5. Allbudget amounts presented in these financial statements and schedules reflect the original budget
and amended budget (which have been adjusted for legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets
during the year). Appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

6. Budget amounts within funds, and between funds, may be transferred if amounts do not exceed the
original budget. Such transfers are to be approved by the budget officer and/or the Board of County
Commissioners, depending on established criteria. Budget augmentations in excess of original
budgetary amounts may not be made without prior approval of the Lander County Board of
Commissioners, following a scheduled and noticed public hearing, as necessary, and transmittal to
the Department of Taxation.

7. Thelegal level of budgetary control is at the function level (excluding debt service function) for the
General Fund, Special Revenue, and Capital Projects funds, and by the sum of operating and non-
operating expenses in the Proprietary Funds, except as specifically permitied by NRS 354,624,

Expenditures over Appropriations

For the fiscal year 2016, genetic marking testing fund had expenditures in excess of final budget
appropriations,
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LANDER COUNTY
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 4. Deposits and Investments

Deposits
To facilitate efficient management of County resources, the County maintains pooled operating and
investment accounts unless cash is restricted and required to be maintained separately or is held by other

custodians on behalf of the County, such as certain imprest bank and petty cash accounts.

Cash and deposits are carried at cost. The following schedule summarizes cash and investments for the
County at June 30, 2016:

Cash and Investment balances held by:

Governmental funds $ 151,977,121
Enterprise funds 11,983,352
Fiduciary funds 3,499,060
Total cash and investments $ 167,459,533

Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits Custodial credit risk is the risk in the event of a bank failure, the County’s deposits may not be
returned. The County’s bank deposits are covered by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
insurance and collateralized by the Office of the State Treasurer/Nevada Collateral Pool.

Investments

The County has a formal investment policy that, in the opinion of management, is designed to insure
conformity with State Statutes and seeks to limit exposure to investment risks.

All investments are governed by the Board of Commissioners’ policy of the “prudent person” rule, The
prudent person rule is a standard to guide those with responsibitity for investing the money of others, Such
-fiduciaries, must act as a prudent person would be expected to act, with discretion and intelligence, to seek
reasonable income, preserve capital and, in general, avoid speculation.

Permitted investments allowed by the County’s investment policy include the Local Government Investment
Pool (LGIP) managed by the Office of the State Treasurer, mutual funds, agency discount notes, government
agency securities (maturity of 10 years or less), AAA rated mortgage backed securities (through an
investment advisor only), time certificates of deposit, and U.S. Treasuries (maturity of 10 years or less).

Investment in the State of Nevada Local Government Investment Pool is carried at fair vatue, which is the

same as the value of the pool shares. The Local Government Investment Pool is an external investment pool
administered by the Treasurer of the State of Nevada, with oversight provided by the Board of Finance.
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NOTE 4. Deposits and Investments, Continued

As of June 30, 2016, the County had the following investments, ratings, and maturities:

Weighted
Fair Credit Average
Value Rating (1) Maturity (2)
Investments:

Local Government Investment Pool $ 11,826,661 * 142 days
Money Market 2,505,739 AAAIAaa NiA
Corporate Bonds 3,543,100 Al-Aaa/A-AA+ T34 days
US Government Securities 8,478,778 AAAIAAT 914 days
Federal Agency Issues 24 230,862 AAATAAT 1,185 days
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 82,423,234 FDIC Insured 1,046 days

Total investments $ 133,008,374

*  This information is not readily available.

(1} Ratings are provided where applicable to indicate the associated credit risk,

(2) Interest rate risk is estimated using the weighted average days to maturity.
Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of possible reduction in the value of a security, especially a bond, resulting from a
rise in interest rates. This risk can be reduced by diversifying the durations of the fixed-income investments
held at a given time. As ameans of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates,
the County’s investiment policy limits the maximum maturity of investments to 10 years.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligation and is a
function of the credit quality ratings of investments. The County’s investments in U.S. Government Securities
are rated AAA by Moody’s Investor Services. The LGIP is an unrated external investment pool, however, the
County’s investment policy allows this type of investment. The County’s money market accounts consist of
high-quality, short-term instruments backed by U.S. Treasury obligations.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed (o the magnitude of a govemment’s investment in a
single issuer. The County’s policy reserves the right to place a limit on the amount invested with any one
financial institution. As of June 30, 2016, 5.64% of the County’s total investiments were in the Federal Home
Loan Bank,

Fair Value Measurements
The County holds investments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The County categorizes its

fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting
principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the agset. Level 1
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NOTE 4. Deposits and Investments, Continued

inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable
inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The governmental securities and federel agency issues, as listed above, are valued using quoted market prices
(Level | inputs). The money market, certificates of deposits and the corporate bonds, as listed above, are
valued using significant other observable inputs (Level 2 inputs).

Interest Earnings & Fair Market Value Assigned to Other Funds
Investment income of $1,018,233 for fiscal year ending June 30, 2016 associated with various funds was

assigned to the General Fund and CCP Fund as required by County policy. The schedule below shows the
related funds and the amount assigned to the General and CCP Funds.

Interest
Earnings &
TFair Market
Value General CCP Fund Total
Naon-major Governmental Funds
Road & Bridge 3 94,631 $ 37,853 b 56,779 b 94,631
Indigent Fund 27,522 11,009 16,513 27,522
State Medical Indigent 116,735 46,654 70,041 116,735
Agriculiural extension 5,211 2,084 3,127 5,211
Aged Services 34,321 13,729 20,593 34,321
Lander County Landfill 61,355 24,542 36,813 61,355
Airport 28,887 11,558 17,332 28,887
Lander Economic Development 1,958 783 1,175 1,958
DOE Nuclear Repository 1,556 623 934 1,556
Regional Strests & Highway 40,655 16,262 24,393 40,555
Austin Capital Acquisition 243 a7 146 243
Town of Austin General Fund 860 344 516 860
Town of Battle Mountain Fund 8,426 3,370 5,056 8,426
Equipment/Building Replacement 148,819 59,528 89,292 148,819
Capital Acquisition 56,371 23,748 35,623 50,371
Cultore and Recrertion 100,212 40,085 60,127 180,212
Battle Mountain Capital Acquisition 1,492 597 895 1,492
Emergency Maintenance 65,652 26,261 39,391 65,652
Reserve Fund 5,973 2,389 3,584 5,973
Title Il SRS/CRA 3,461 1,384 2,076 3,461
Administration Assessment Fees 738 294 442 736
Genetic Marker Testing 16 6 G 16
Forensic Services 73 31 47 78
Drug Court 955 382 573 955
Court Facility Fee 2,755 1,102 1,653 2,755
Juvenile Administration Assessment 144 56 24 140
Mine Map Fees 2,941 1,177 1,765 2,941
Teclnology Fees 21,738 8,696 13,043 21,739
Airport Capital 73,070 29,228 43,842 73,070
Court Facility Capital 9,614 3,846 3,769 9.614
Enterprise Funds

Mt. Lewis Communications Site 3,293 1,317 1,976 3,293
Battle Mountain Water 26,955 10,782 16,173 26,955
Battle Moumiain Sewer 68,599 27,440 41,159 68,599

Total ¥ 1,018,233 $ 407293 ¥ 610,940 $ 1,018,233
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External Investment Pool

Lander County administers an external investment pool combining Lander County funds with veluntary
investments from the Battle Mountain Fair and Recreation, Austin Fair and Recreation, Town of Kingston,
Kingston Water District, and Kingston Volunieer Fire. The Board of Commissioners has overall responsibility
for investment of funds, including the external investment pool in accordance with NRS 355.175. The Lander
County Treasurer is delegated investment responsibilities. Monthly, Wells Fargo determines the fair value of
the investments held in the State of Nevada Local Government Pooled Investment Fund. Fach participant’s
share is equal to their original investment plus or minus monthly allocations of interest income, and realized
and unrealized gains and losses. The County has not provided nor obtained any legally binding guarantees to
support the value of shares.

Fair Value/ Principal Amount/
Investment Type Carrying Amount Number of Shares Interest Rate Maturity Date
Local Government
Investment Pool $ 11,826,661 $ 11,826,661 Variable July 1, 2016

External Investment Pool Condensed Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position
6/30/2016

Assets:
Local Government Investment Pool $ 11,826,661

Net Position Held in Trust for Pool Participants:
WNet Position consists of

Internal participant shares 10,372,414
External participant shares 1,454,247
Total Participant Shares Outstanding ($1.00 par) $ 11,826,661
Price per share ($11,826,661/11,826,661) § 1.00

External Investment Pool Coendensed Financial Statements
Statement of Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Net Increase in Net Position Resulting from Operations:

Investment Income 3 43,660

Capital share transactions 2,001,645

Total increase/(decrease) in net position 2,045,305

Net Position, beginning of year 9,781,356

Net Position, end of year $ 11,826,661
38
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NOTE 5. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

Interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are
provided or reimbursed expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3)
payments between tunds are made.

There were no interfund balances as of June 30, 2016.
Transfers between funds occur primarily to finance programs accounted for in one fund with resources

cotlected in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations. Interfund transfers for the year ended
June 30, 2016 are shown in the following table:

Transfers out:

Non-major
Lander Administrative
County Capital Assessment Technalogy Court Facility
Transfer in: Genersl Alrporis Acquisition Fees Fees Fees Total
Generzal Fund 3 - $ - b - § 15,385 $ 90,079 3 34915 5 140,379
CCP Fund 90,072 - - ’ - - - 90,079
Non-major Governmental Funds
Road & Bridge - 5121 - - " - 5,121
Austin Capital Acquisition - - 3,237 - - - 3,237
Battle Mountain Capital Acquisition - - 19,054 - - - 19,054
Court Facilities Capital 53,300 - - - - - 50,300
Total $ 140,379 3 5,121 $ 22,291 $ 15,385 5 50,079 § 34,915 $ 308,170
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NOTE 6. Capital Assels i
The following table summarizes the changes to capital assets for governmental activities during the year: - f
Governmental Activities: Balanee Balance E L
6/30/2015 Additions Deletions 6/30/2016 :
Capital assets, not being depreciated; E !
Land $ 2,582,603 $ - 5 - § 2,582,603
Construction in progress 19,261,504 9,007,324 (24,503,903} 3,765,325 g :
Total capital assets, not being depreciated: 21,844,507 9,007,324 (24,503,903) 6,347,928 ) _
Capital asseis, being depreciated: % _‘ _
Improvements other than buildings 17,061,798 2,611,842 (20,000) 19,653,740
Buildings 11,858,357 19,742,258 - 31,600,615 § 1
Equipment & vehicles 16,584,020 1,866,366 (28,033) 18,422,353 '
Infrastructure 30,016,618 4,642,524 - 34,659,142 g '
Total capital assets, being depreciated: 75,520,793 28,863,090 (48,033) 104,335,850 ’
|
Less aceurnulated depreciation for: Ei B
Improvements other than buildings (10,109,685) (939,663) 15,000 (11,033,348)
Buildings (3,781,051 (383,982) - (4,165,033) g
Equipment & vehicles (9,617,170) (1,001,700) 28,033 (10,590,837)
Infrastructure (10,465,852) (1,599,111) - {12,064,963) é i
Total accumulated depreciation (33,973,758) (3,924,456) 44 033 (37,854,181)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 41,547,035 24,938,634 (4,000) 66,481,669 E 5
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 63,391,542 $ 33,945,958 $ (24,507,903 § 72,829,597 E ;
Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the County as follows: % J
Governmental Activities: .
General government § 1,640,786 E :
Judicial 7,089 .
Public safety 423,531 g
Public works 1,421,024
Health and sanitation 153,238 E |
Welfare 8,714 -
Culture and recreation 270,074 g :
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 5 3,924,456 ’
0 '
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NOTE 6. Capital Assets, Continued

The following table summarizes the changes to capital assets for business-type activities during the year:

Business Type Activities: Balance Balance
6/30/2015 Additions Deletions Transfers 6/30/2016
Capital assels, not being depreciated;
Land $ 10,950 S - 3 - 3 - 3 10,950
Construction in progress 2,305,877 1,207,654 (2,981,204) - 532,327
Total capital assets, not being depreciated: 2,316,827 1,207,654 (2,981,204) - 543,277
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Improvements other than buildings 31,277,465 2,981,204 - (1,177,055) 33,081,614
Buildings 1,060,772 - - 288,372 1,349,144
Equipment & vehicles 687,836 - - 388.683 1,576,519
Total capital assets, being depreciated: 33,026,073 2,981,204 - - 36,007,277
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Improvements otlier than buildings (7,719,183 {659,454) - 864,166 (7,514,471)
Buildings (543,782) (29,433) - (30} (573,245)
Equipment & vehicles (196,688) {109,049) - {864,136} (1,169,873)
Tota! aceumulated depreciation (8,459,653) {797,926) - - (9,257,589)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 24,566,420 2,183,268 - - 26,749,688
Business type activities capital assets, net $ 26,883,247 $ 3,390,522 3 (2,981,204 & - $ 27,292 945

Depreciation expense was charged (o the business-type activies as follows:

Business Type Activities:

Water $ 405,671
Sewer 355,893
Conmnnunication Site 36,372
Total depreciation expense - business type activities $ 797,936

Changes in construction in progress are summarized as follows:

The County is currently working on the following projects: Battle Mountain recreation center, airport
projects, fuel system project, GES projects, fiood levee, and lift station rehabilitation project,
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NOTE 7. Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2016:

Balance Balance Current

Governmental activities: 6/30/2015 Additions Retirements 6/30/2016 Portion
Accrued Compensated Absences § 352,990 £ 99060 § (102,633) § 346417 $ 157,238
Net OPEB Qbligation 296,301 72,947 (64,140) 305,108 -
Net Pension Liability 11,097,492 1,385,510 - 12,483,002 -
Total governmental long term liabilities $ 11,746,783 § 1,557,517 $  (166,773) § 13,137,527 3 157,238

For governmental activities, compensated absences, other posi-employment benefils (OPEB), and net position
liabilities are generally liquidated through the General Fund.

Balance Balance Current
Business-type activities &6/3072015 Additions Retirements 6/30/2016 Portion
Accrued Compensated Absences $ 11,319 § 9,689 % (14,398) % 6610 § 6,610
Net OPEB Obligation 7,265 3,333 (1,476) 9,122 -
Net Pension Liability 462,396 (98,876) 363,520 -
Total business-type long term liabilities $ 480,980 § 13,022 § (114,750) § 379,252 § 6,610
NOTE 8. Net Proceeds of Mines

The County receives net proceeds of mines taxes through the State of Nevada that is then apportioned by the
County. The County receives a payment in June of each year as a settlement payment for the previous
calendar year(s). This amount is recognized as revenue when received, consistent with prior years. In Fune of
each year the County also receives an advance payment for current calendar year. In the past this amount
would not have been received until after fiscal year end and therefore to be consistent the amount is recorded

as a deferred inflow of resources when received.

42

i

[

L

LA

3



LANDER COUNTY
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 9. Available Borrowing Capacity

The lawful County government general obligation debt limit is established under NRS 244A.059 not to
exceed an amount equal to 10 percent of the total of the last assessed valuation of taxable property situated
within the County. At June 30, 2016, the general obligation debt limit of Lander County was $1,168,524,947.
The County has general obligation long-term debt outstanding at year end of $0. Accordingly, its legal
borrowing capacity is $1,168,524,947 at June 30, 2016.

The law{ul unincorporated town government general obligation debt limit is established under NRS 269.425
not to exceed an amount equal to 25 percent of the total of the last assessed valuation of taxable property
situated within the town, At June 30, 2016, the general obligation debt limit of the unincorporated towns of
Austin and Battle Mountain was $1,119,038 and $12,052,466 respectively. As none of these towns had
general obligation debt at June 30, 2016, these amounts are also their available borrowing capacity amounts.

NOTE 14. Commitments and Contingencies

Lander County is obligated as follows:

Grants Received

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the Federal government. Any disallowed claims, including emounts already collecied,
may constitute a liability in the applicable funds. The amounts, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the County expects such amounts, if
any, to be immaterial.

Litigation

The County is party to legal proceedings which normally oceur in governmental operations, County officials
believe these legal proceedings are not likely to have a material adverse impact on the financial position of the
County.
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NOTE 11. Risk Management

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County has joined together with
similar public agencies (cities, counties, and special districts) throughout the State of Nevada to create a pool
under the Nevada Interlocal Cooperation Act. The Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (Pool) is a public
entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for its members,

The County pays an annual premiwm and specific deductibles, as necessary, to the Pool for its general
insurance coverage. The Pool is considered a self-sustaining risk pool that will provide liability coverage for
its members up to $10,000,000 per event and 2 $10,000,000 general aggregate per member. Property, crime
and equipment breakdown coverage is provided to its members up to $300,000,000 per loss with various
sublimits established for earthquake, flood, equipment breakdown, and money and securities.

The County has entered into an agreement with PACT (Public Agency Compensation Trust), a self-insured
association for workers’ compensation coverage. The purpose of the County’s participation is to enhance its
ability to control costs and to better serve and protect its employees. PACT is bound by statute as defined in
NRS 616A-616D. The County pays premiums based on payroll costs to the PACT. The PACT is considered a
self-sustaining pool that will provide coverage based on established statutory limits.

The County continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks ofloss, including specific risks of loss not
covered by the Pool (airport liability, bonding and boiler coverage) and employee health and accident
insurance, Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any
of the past three fiscal years.

The County has obtained insurance to cover the costs of closure and post-closure of the Battle Mountain
landfill (see Note 14).

NOTE 12. Retirement and Pension Plan

Public Employees® Retirement System of Nevada (PERS)
Plan deseription

PERS administers a cosi-sharing, mulfiple-emplaoyer, defined benefit public employees’ retirement system
which includes both Regular and Police/Tire members, The System was established by the Nevada
Legislature in 1947, effective July 1, 1948, The System is administered to provide a reasonable base income
to qualified employees who have been employed by a public employer and whose earnings capacities have
been removed or substantially impaired by age or disability,

Benefits provided
Benefits, as required by the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS or statute), are determined by the number of years

of accredited service at time of retirement and the member’s highest average compensation in any 36
consecutive months with special provisions for members entering the System on or after January 1, 2010.
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LANDER COUNTY
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 12. Retirement and Pension Plan, Continued

Benefit payments to which participants or their beneficiaries may be entitled under the plan include pension
benefits, disability benefits, and survivor benefits.

Monthly benefit allowances for members are computed as 2.5% of average compensation for each accredited
year of service prior to July 1, 2001, For service earned on and after July 1, 2001, this multiplier is 2.67% of
average compensation. For members entering the System on or after January 1, 2010, there is a 2.5%
multiplier. The System offers several alternatives to the unmodified service retirement allowance which, in
general, allow the retired employee to accept a reduced service retirement allowance payable monthly during
his ot her lifetime and various optional monthly payments to a named beneficiary after his or her death.

Post-retirement increases are provided by authority of NRS 286.575 - 579,
Vesting

Regular members are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 60 with 10 years of
service, or at any age with thirty years of service. Regular members entering the System on or after January 1,
20190, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, or age 62 with 10 years of service, or any
age with thirty vears of service.

Police/Fire members are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 55 with ten years of
service, at age 50 with twenty vears of service, or at any age with twenty-five vears of service. Police/Fire
members entering the System on or after January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at 65 with five years of
service, or age 60 with ten years of service, or age 5¢ with twenty years of service, or at any age with thirty
years of service. Ounly service performed in a position as a police officer or firefighter may be céunted
towards to eligibility for retirement as Police/Fire accredited service.

The normal ceiling limitation on monthly benefits allowances is 75% of average compensation. However, a
member who has an effective date of membership before July 1, 1983, is entitled to a benefit of up to 90% of
average compensation. Both Regular and Police/Fire members become fully vested as to benefits upon
completion of five years of service.

Contributions

The authority for establishing and amending the obligation to make contributions and member contribution
rates is set by statute. New hires, in agencies which did not elect the Employer-Pay Contribution (EPC) plan
prior to July 1, 1983, have the option of selecting one of two contribution plans. Contributions are shared
equally by employer and employee. Employees can take a reduced salary and have contributions made by the
employer (EPC) or can make contributions by a payroll deduction matched by the employer.

The System’s basic funding policy provides for periodic coniributions at a level pattern of cost as a
percentage of salary throughout an employee’s working lifetime in order to accumulate sufficient assets to
pay benefits when due.

The System receives an actuarial valuation on an annual basis indicating the contribution rates required to

fund the System on an actuarial reserve basis. Contributions actually made are in accordance with the required
rates
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NOTE 12. Retirement and Pension Plan, Continued

established by the Nevada Legislature. These statutory rates are increased/decreased pursuant to NRS 286.421
and 286.450.

The actuary funding method used is the Entry Age Normal Cost Method. It is intended to mest the funding
objective and result in a relatively level long-term contributions requirement as a percentage of salary.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2016 the Statutory Employer/employee matching rate
was 13.25% and 14.50% for Regular and 20.75% and 20.75% for Police/Fire, respectively. The Employer-
pay contribution (EPC) rate was 25.75% and 28.00% for Regular and 40.50% and 40.50% for Police/Fire,
respectively.

The County's contributions for the current and two preceding fiscal years, all of which were equal to the
required contributions, were as follows:

Year Ended Regular Police/Fire
June 30, Fund Fund
2014 $ 656,746 b 1,032,940
2015 672,563 1,057,818
2016 747,270 1,080,873

Investment policy

The System’s policies which determine the investment portfolio target asset allocation are established by the
Board. The asset allocation is reviewed annually and is designed to meet the future risk and return needs of
the System. The following was the Board adopted policy target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015:

Asset Class Target Long-term Geometric Expected
Allocation Real Rate of Return®

Domestic equity 42% 5.50%

International equity 18% 5.75%

Domestic fixed income 30% 0.25%

Private markets 10% 6.80%

*As of Iune 30, 2015, PERS’ long-term inflation assumption was 3.50%.

Pension liability

Net pension liability

At June 30, 2016, the County reported a liability of $12,846,521 for its proportionate share of the PERS' net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The

employer allocation percentage of the net pension liability was based on the total contributions due on wages
paid during the measurement period. Each employer’s proportion of the net pension liability is based on their

46

Lo pE— - [} A I

Lol

[P

[



LANDER COUNTY
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 12. Retirement and Pension Plan, Continued

combined employer and member contributions relative to the total combined employer and member
contributions for all employers for the period ended June 30, 2015.The County's proportion measured as of

June 30, 2015, was 0.112104 percent, which was an decrease of 0.006916 percent from its proportion
measured as of June 30, 2014,

Pension liability discount rate sensitivily

The following presents the net pension Hability of the PERS as of June 30, 2015, calculated using the discount
rate of 8.00%, as well as what the PERS net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount

rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (7.00%) or 1-percentage-point higher (9.00%) than the current discount
rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(7.00%) {(8.00%) {9.00%)
Proporticnate share of
Net pension (asset) / liability $ 19,584,402 $ 12,846,521 & 7,243,553

Pension plan fiduciary net position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s {iduciary net position is available in the PERS Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report, available on the PERS website.

Actuarial assumptions

The County’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The tota! pension

liability was determined using the following actuatial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation rate 3.50%

Payroll growth 5.00%, including inflation

Investiment rate of return 8.00%

Productivity pay increase 0.75%

Projecied salary increases Regular: 4.60% to 9.75%, depending on service

Police/Fire: 5.25% to 14.50%, depending on service

Rates include inflation and productivity increases
Consumer Price Index 3.50%

Other assumptions Same as those used in the Fune 30, 2015 funding
actuarial valuation

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 valuation were based on the results of the experience review
completed in 2013,
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NOTE 12. Retirement and Pension Plan, Continued

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.00% as of June 30, 2015 and June 30,
2014. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer
contrtbutions will be made at the rate specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position at June 30, 2015, was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan invesiments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total

pension liability as of June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014.

Pension expense and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the County recognized pension expense for PERS of $1,414,714. At June
30, 2016, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to

pensions from the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual experience
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments

Subtotal
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportional share of contributions
Contributions subsequent o the measurement date

Total

Governmental activities
Business-type activities

Average expected remaining service lives
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of Resources Resources
b - $ 966,280
- 695,853
- 1,602,133
70,705 108,021
1,808,947 -
3 1,879,652 § 1,770,154
b 1,807,285 $ 1,702,003
72,367 68,151
$ 1,879,652 $ 1,770,154
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LANDER COUNTY
Notes to the Financial Statements
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NOTE 12. Retirement and Pension Plan, Continued

The $1,808,947 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to PERS pensions resulting from County
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as areduction of the net pension
liability in the subsequent fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and defetred
inflows of resources related to PERS pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred Outflows
Year Ending (Inflows) of
June 30, Resources

2017 § (516,466)
2018 (516,466)
2019 (516,466)
2020 ' 97,036
2021 (159,700)
2022 {50,070)

Thereafter -

NOTE 13. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

Plan Description

The County administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan, Lander County Employee Health
Benefit Plan (LCEHBP). Additionally, the County subsidizes eligible retirees’ contributions to an agent
multiple-employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan, Public Employees' Benefits Plan (PEBP),

Each plan provides medical, vision, dental, and life insurance benefits to eligible County retiress and their
beneficiaries.

Benefit provisions for the LCEHBP are established pursuant to NRS 287.023 and amended through
negotiations between the County and the respective associations. NRS 288.150 assigns the authority to
establish benefit provisions to the Board of Commissioners. The plan provides healthcare insurance for
eligible retiress and their beneficiaries through the County’s group health insurance plan, which covers both
active and retired members. Under NRS 287.023 eligible retirees are able to participate in the plan with
blended rates, thereby benefitiing from an implicit subsidy. Retirees are required to pay 100% of their
premiums under the plan. As of June 30, 2016 no retirees were using this plan. The LCEHBP does not issue a
publicly available financial report.
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LANDER COUNTY
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 13, Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, Confinued

Benefit provisions for the PEBP are administered by the State of Nevada. NRS 287.043 assigns the anthority
to establish and amend benefit provisions to the PEBP nine-member board of trustees, County employees who
met the eligibility requirements effective August 1, 2008 for retirement within the Public Employee
Retirement System had the option upon retirement to enroll in coverage under the PEBP. NRS 287.023
sunsetted the option to join PEBP for County employees who retired after November 29, 2008. Local
governments are required to pay the same portion of cost of coverage for those persons joining PEBP that the
State of Nevada pays for state retirees participating in the plan. The subsidy provided by the County is
determined by their number of years of service. The PEBP issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing
to Public Employee’s Benefits Program, 901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 1001, Carson City, NV, 89701, by
calling (800) 326-5496, or by accessing the website at www.pebp.stat.nv.us/informed/financial htm.

Funding Policy and Annual OPER Cost

For LCEHBP, contribution requirements of the plan members and the County are established and may be
amended through negotiations between the County and the associations. Retirees pay 100% of the pay-as-
you-go premiums based on a blended rate that blends active participants and retirees. The County’s
contribution requirements for retirees relate to the implicit subsidy that results from using the blended rates
and is determined in actuarial studies contracted for by the County.

For the PEBP, NRS 287.046 establishes the subsidies to be contributed toward the premium costs of the
cligible County retirees. Plan members receiving benefits have their monthly contribution deducted from their
pension checks based on the health plan chosen by the retiree as reduced by the amount of the subsidy,
therefore, their contributions are not available. For the plan year ended June 30, 2016, retirees qualified fora
subsidy of $116 at five years of service and $636 at 20 years of service with incremental increases for each
year of service between. Subsidy rates for retirees covered under the Medicare Exchange were $55 at five
years of service and $220 at 20 years of service with $11 increases for each year of service in between. The
contribution requirements of plan members and the County are established and amended by the PEBP board
of'trustees. As a patticipating employer, the County is billed for the subsidy on a monthly basis and is legally
required under NRS 287.023 to provide for it. For fiscal year 2016, the County contributed $65,616 to the
plan for the current premiums equal to the required contributions. The County did not prefund any future
benefits.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Oblieation

The County’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB}) cost (expense) for the plans is calculated based
on the anaual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance
with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents alevel of funding that, if paid on an ongoing
basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or
funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.
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LANDER COUNTY
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 13. Postemployment Bepefits Other Than Pensions, Continued

The County's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plans, and the net
OPEB obligations (assets), by plan, for fiscal years 2014 through 2016 were as follows:

% of Annual
Fiscal Year Annual Employer OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Contributions Contributed Obligation
LCEHBP 6/30/2015 i3 S 25912 $ 2,809 11% 3 181,731
LCEHBP 6/30/2015 $ 25,836 $ - 0% $ 158,628
LCEHBP 6/30/2014 $ 32,076 $ - 0% $ 132,792
PEBP 6/30/2016 b 50,368 $ 62,807 125% i 132,499
PEBP 6/30/2015 $ 54,750 $ 54,917 100% b 144,938
PEBP 6/30/2014 3 67,951 $ 63,103 93% £ 145,105
Combined Totals 6/30/2015 3 76,280 $ 65,616
Combined Totals 6/30/2015 $ 80,586 $ 54,917
Combined Totals 6/30/2014 $ 100,027 $ 63,103
The net OPEB obligation as of June 30, 2016, was calculated as follows:
LCEHBP PEBP Totals
Annual required contribution b 30,371 % 58419 % 88,760
Interest on net OPEB obligation 6,279 5,629 11,908
Adjustments to annual required contributions (10,738} (13,680) {24,418)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 25912 50,368 76,280
Contributions made (2,809) (62,307) (65,616)
Change in net OPEB obligation 23,103 (12,43%) 10,664
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 158,628 144,938 303,566
Net OPEB cbligation - end of year 3 181,731 § 132,499 § 314,230
Funding Statas and Funding Progress
The funding status of the plans as of June 30, 2016, was as follows:
LCEHBP PEBP Totals
Accrued actuarial liability (a) b 172,228 § 867,913 § 1,040,141
Actuarial value of plan assets (b) - - -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (a)-(b) 5 172,228 % 867,913 § 1,040,141
Funded ratio (b)/(a) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Covered payroll (¢) $ 6,800,000 N/A
Uunfunded actuarial accrued fabilty as a
percentage of coverad payroll ([(a)-(B)]/ {c) 2.53%
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LANDER COUNTY
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 13. Postemployment Benefits QOther Than Pensions, Continued

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability
of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the
annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared
to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented
as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the County and the plan members to that
point. Actuarial calculations reflect long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.
Significant methods and assumptions are as follows:

I.CEHBP PEBP
Actuarial valuation date 7/1/2014 7/1/2014
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Entry Age
Normal Cost ~ Normal Cost
Amortization method Level dollar/y  Level dollar/
open closed
Amortization period (closed) 30 years 23 years
Asset valuation method Market value  Market value
Actuarial assumptions LCEHBP PERP
Investment rate of retun 4.00% 4.00%
Projected salary increases 4.00% 4.00%
Inflation rate (per year) 3.00% 3.00%
Helthcare inflaction rate® 7.50% 7.50%

*Decreasing .50% each year until
ultimate trent rate of 5% is reached
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LANDER COUNTY
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 14. Landfill Closure and Postelosure Care Cost

State and federal laws and regulations require Lander County to place final covers on its Battle Mountain and
Austin landfill sites when they stop accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monttoring
functions at the sites for 30 years after closure. During the year ended June 30, 1999, the County
Commissioners approved the County’s purchase of insurance to cover the costs of closure and post-closure of
the landfills. As such, the County has not recorded its liability in the Lander County Landfills Fund. The
County is obligated under the insurance policy to pay an annual premium over 15 years. The County paid its
final annual premium during fiscal year 2014, The County continually evaluates an expected closure date for
the Battle Mountain landfill. Per an engineering study performed in 2003, the predicted life of the landfill was
77 vears, through 2080. The engineer reevaluates the landfill capacity and adjusts it annually based on the
landfill usage. At June 30, 2016 the estimated closure and post-closure liability is $497,515 and the insured
amount is $500,145.

The Austin landfill was closed in 2006, During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the County received State
approval on the Austin landfill closure. A trust fund for post-closure financial assurance was established with
Nevada Division of Environmental Protection named beneficiary of the trust. The trust was fully funded in
2007 in the amount of $64,200 pursuant to an engineering report. The eamnings in the trust have met the
inflationary requirements s¢t by the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection. At June 30, 2016 the
estimated remaining post-closure liability is $50,050.

NOTE 15, Construction and Purchase Commitments

Lander County has entered into contracts for construction and asset purchases as follows:

Project Expended/ Commitment
Authorization Retainage 6/30/2016
Adrport Projects $ 415590 § 1,624,842 § 2,531,108
— Battle Mountain Recreation Center 16,014,127 1,423,403 14,590,722
Water and Sewer Projects 2,507,199 532,327 1,974,872
Various Projects 961,691 717,076 244,615
Total Projects 3 23,638,967 § 4,297,650 3 19341317
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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LANDER COUNTY
Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada
June 30, 2016
Last 10 Fiscal Years

Reporting Fiscal Year Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date) {Measurement Date)
2016 2015
(2015) (2014)
Proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.112104% 0.110920%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) $ 12,846,521  § 11,559,888
Covered employese payroll $ 5,819,671 % 5,825,961
Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a
percentage of its covered-employee payroll 220.74% 198.42%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension
liability 75.1% 76.30%

Note: County implemented GASB 68 in fiscal year 2015. Some prior year information is not available.
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LANDER COUNTY
Schedule of Contributions
Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada

June 30, 2016
Last 10 Fiscal Years
Reporting Fiscal Year Reporting Fiscal Year
{Measurement Date) {Measurement Date)
2016 2015
(2015) 2014)
Contractually required contribution $ 1,730,381  § 1,711,073
Contributions in relation to the coniractuzlly required contribution $ (1,730,381) % (1,711,073)
Contribution deficiency (excess) [5 - 8 .
Covered employee payrol! 3 5819671 % 5,825,961
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 29.73% 2937%

Note: County implemented GASB 68 in fiscal year 2015. Seme prior year information is not available,
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LANDER COUNTY
GENERAL FUND

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2015)

REVENULES:

Tax revenue

Ad valorem
Penalties and interest
Net proceeds of mines
Franchise taxes

Total tax revenue

Licenses and pennits

Liguor licenses
County gaming licenses
Building permits
Motor vehicle licenses
Marriage hicenses
Mobile home permits

Total licenses and permnits

Intergovernmentai

Federal grants
State grants
State gaming licenses
Consolidated tax
Tota! intergovernmental

Charges for services

Clerk fees
Recorder fees
Asgsessor's commissions
Sheriff's fees
Inmate housing fees
Law library fees
Divorce action fees
Civil cases
Caopy fees
Justice court fees
Ambulance fees
Other

Total charges for services

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual {Unfavorable) 2015
$ 8,513,960 $ 8,513,960 $ 7,265,466 3 (1,247494) $ 7,176,990
45,000 45,000 33,400 (11,600) 37,149
- - 126,217 126,217 651,099
12,030 12,050 60,744 48,694 83,926
8,571,010 8,571,010 7,486,827 (1,084,183) 7,049,164
6,000 6,000 5,430 {570) 6,609
13,005 13,005 16,614 3,609 15,631
77,500 77,500 169,464 91,964 87,225
42,500 42,500 44,513 2,013 46,122
1,300 1,800 714 (1,086) 882
30 30 18 (12) 22
140,835 140,835 236,753 95,918 156,491
- - 28,221 28,221 53,134
- - 12,983 12,983 1,108
130,000 130,000 138,096 8,096 142,504
3,304,825 3,394,825 3,689,592 294,767 3,560,587
3,524,825 3,524,825 3,868,892 344,067 3,757,333
2,560 2,560 2,237 (303} 1,954
80,000 80,000 77,285 (2,715) 74,303
325,000 325,000 766,582 441,582 840,879
5,000 5,000 4,732 (268) 4,416
25,000 25,000 16,739 (8,261) 2,543
1,000 1,000 1,425 425 1,290
5,000 5,000 6,433 1,433 9,039
15,000 15,000 13,473 (1,527) 11,027
8,500 8,500 10,520 2,020 7,211
8,000 8,000 10,988 2,988 12,906
- - . - 100
11,800 11,800 5,155 (6,643) -
486,360 486,860 915,589 428729 965,688
(continued)
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LANDER COUNTY
GENERAL FUND
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2015)

Varjance
Budget Favorable Actual
REVENUES (Continued): Original Final Actual (Unfavorzable) 2015
Fines and forfeitures
Fines and forfeitures " 182,000 182,000 240,626 58,626 182,156
Other 250 250 793 548 975
Total fines and forfelturas 182,250 182,230 241,424 59,174 183,131
Investment earnings
Interest 518,580 518,580 552,897 34,317 360,901
Net increase (decrease) in the fair
value of investiments - - 534,783 534,783 43,728
Total investment earnings 518,580 518,580 1,087,680 569,100 404,629
Other revenue
Rents 22,500 22,500 16,079 {12,421y 28,340
Sales of tax deeded property - - - - 23,060
Miscellansous 23,000 20,000 17,149 (2,851 26,4357
Total other revenue 42,500 43,500 27,228 (15,272) 71,857
Total rgvenues 13,466,860 13,466,860 13,864,393 397,533 13,494,293
(coniinued)
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LANDER COUNTY
GENERAL FUND
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2015)

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
EXPENDITURES: Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2015
General government
Cormmissioners
Salaries and wages 148,085 148,085 147,063 1,022 129,866
Enployee benefits 112,945 112,943 87,541 25,404 82,658
Services aud supplies 85,600 85,600 39914 45,686 64,234
346,630 346,630 274,518 72,112 276,756
Clerk
Salaries and wages 206,010 209,665 208,296 1,369 184,783
Employee benefits 130,875 127,220 97,802 20418 92,799
Services and supplies 92,850 92,850 65,747 27,103 61,458
429,735 429,735 371,845 57,890 339,040
Treasuwer
Salaries and wages 229,420 229,420 219,320 10,100 208,782
Employee benefits 134,015 134,015 100,632 33,383 109,420
Services and supplies 38,784 38,784 30,015 8,769 32,889
402,219 402,219 349,967 53,252 351,001
Executive director
Salaries and wages 306,485 306,483 220,912 85,573 256,414
Erployee benefits 150,575 150,575 86,596 63,979 93,695
Services and supplies 615,450 615,450 266,407 349,043 141,590
1,072,510 1,072,580 573,915 498,595 493,699
Assessor
Salaries and wages 383,035 376,035 236,996 139,039 257,415
Employee benefits 193,363 193,565 101,256 92,309 112,996
Services and supplies 128,020 128,020 48,354 79,666 43,543
704,620 697,620 336,606 311,014 413,954
Finance departinent
Salaries and wages 245,620 245,620 202,528 43,092 179,437
Employee benefits 107,275 107,275 54,205 53,070 46,600
Services and supplies 164,255 164,255 121,364 42,891 134,679
517,150 517,150 378,097 139,053 360,716
Building & planning
Salaries and wages 174,920 174,920 137,492 37428 141,025
Employee benefits 127,950 127,950 62,809 65,141 65,083
Services and supplies 76,500 76,500 39,938 36,562 23,344
379,370 379,370 240,239 139,131 220452
Building maintenance
Salaries and wages 19,040 34,055 30,796 3,239 u
Employee benefits 9,115 14,100 11,190 2,910 701
Services and supplies 422,828 402,828 332,231 70,597 243,345
450,983 450,983 374,217 76,766 244,046
Recorder
Salaries and wages 206,445 228,545 220,517 1,428 188,682
Employee benefits 126,020 117,520 91,839 25,681 88,430
Services and supplies 48,250 48,250 29,036 19,214 31,994
380,715 387,715 341,392 46,323 309,106
Other general
Retiree insurance 500,000 500,000 63,401 436,599 54,917
Services and supplies 873,839 871,339 537,516 333,823 485,537
1,373,839 1,371,339 600,917 770,422 540,454
Total general goverament 6,057,771 6,055,271 3,891,713 2,163,558 3,558,314
(continued)
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LANDER COUNTY
GENERAL FUND
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2015)

Varfance
Budgel Favorable Actnal
EXPENDITURES (Continued): Original Final Actual (Unfavorable} 2015
Public safety
Sheriff
Salaries and wages 1,993,740 1,993,740 1,672,798 320,942 1,689,379
Employee benefits 1,598,580 1,598,580 968,357 630,223 998,594
Services and supplies 537,200 537,200 365,223 ' 171,977 412,940
Capital cutlay 5,000 5,000 5,000 - 8,000
4,134 520 4,134,520 3.011,378 1,123,142 3,108,913
JTail operations
Salaries and wages 645,425 645,425 613,175 32,250 536,032
Employee benefits 548,315 548,315 364,074 184,241 345,457
Services and supplies 291,400 251,400 191,663 99,737 187,923
Capital outlay 20,000 20,000 - 20,000 -
1,505,140 1,505,140 1,168,912 336,228 1,069,412
Animal control
Salaries and wages 61,590 41,590 48,896 12,694 46,509
Employee benefits 32,990 32,990 23,563 9,427 19,872
Services and supplies 23,660 26,160 15,285 10,875 12,445
Capital outlay 1,500 1,500 1,630 {130) -
119,740 122,240 82.374 32,866 783,826
Austin fire department
Salaries and wages 600 &00 - 600 -
Employee benefits 15,666 15,666 5418 10,248 2,735
Services and supplies 44,900 44,900 4,897 40,003 10,529
Capital outlay 2,300 2,800 521 2279 -
£3,966 63,966 10,836 53,130 13,264
Austin ambulance
Services and supplies 83,300 3,800 72,533 11,267 74,924
83,300 83,800 72,533 11,267 74,924
Battle Mountain fire deparement
Salaries and wages 1,800 1,800 1,800 - 1,800
Employee benefits 34,530 34,530 31,599 2,931 30,209
Services and supplies 203,700 205,700 170,312 35,388 168,019
Capital outlay 5,000 3,000 2,099 2,901 -
247,030 247,030 205,810 41,220 201,028
Batile Mcunfain ambulance
Salaries and wages - - - - 1,950
Services and supplies 268,000 268,000 251,377 16,623 258,123
268,000 268,000 251,377 16,623 260,075
Total public safety 6,422,196 6,424,696 4,810,220 1,614,476 4,806,442
(continued)
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LANDER COUNTY
GENERAL FUND

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
{With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2015)

EXPENDITURES (Continued):

Judicial
District court
Services and supplies
Capital outfay

District attormey
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Juvenile probation
Services and supplics

Justice court - Argenta
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Justic court ~ Austin
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Public defender
Services and supplies

Total judicial

Intergoverninenal
Services and supplies
Total intergovernmental
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources {uses)

Net change in fund bhalance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

Variance

Budget Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2015
274,500 274,500 245,791 28,709 256,811
5,000 5,000 2,153 2,845 -
279,500 279,500 247,946 35,554 256,811
444,140 444,140 349,452 94,688 298,609
207,533 207,535 131,487 76,048 102,745
92,750 92,750 73,791 18,959 69,278
744,425 744,425 554,730 189,695 470,632
649,516 649,516 431,867 217,649 531,258
649,516 649,516 431,867 217,649 331,258
246,365 263,465 250,939 12,506 220,378
139,310 145,330 106,853 38477 97,083
100,100 76,930 40,765 36,215 37,905
485,775 485,775 398,577 87,198 355,368
59,220 60,720 59,630 1,090 59,875
27,790 26,290 21,076 5214 20,879
14,950 14,950 6,724 8,226 17,005
101,960 101,960 87,430 14,530 97,759
128,500 128,500 111,170 17,330 87,043
128,500 128,500 111,170 17,330 87,043
2,389,676 2,380,676 1,831,720 557,956 1,798,871
146,820 146,820 96,881 49,939 106,680
146,820 146,820 96,881 45,935 196,690
15,016,463 15016463 10,630,534 4,385,929 10,360,317
{1,549,6063) (1,549,603) 3,233,859 4,783,462 3,133,976
52,653 52,653 140,379 87,726 478,414
(52,653} {52,653) (140,379} (87,726) (2,011,099)
- - - - (1,532,685)
{1,549,603) (§,549,603) 3,233,859 4,783,462 1,601,291
37,634,134 37,634,134 37,634,134 - 36,032,843
$ 36,084,531 $ 36,084,531 $ 40,867,993 4,783,462 $ 37,634,134
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Schedule of Funding Progress
Other Post-Employment Benefits
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

LANDER COUNTY
Required Supplementary Information

Actuarial Actuarial
Accrued Accrued
Liability (AAL) Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAATL asa
Actuarial Actuarial EANC EANC AAL Funded Covered Percentags of
Valuation Value of Assets LCEHBP PEBP (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (a} {0)] )] (b-a) (a/b) {©) ((t-a)/c)

7142014 3 5 148,108 § 851,425 % 1,039,534 0.0% § 6,800,000 2.2%
71/2011 $ 3 170,341 $ 1,140,305 3 1,310,646 00% § 5,212,351 3.3%
7172008 3 3 148,388 § 285104 $ 2,999,412 00% 3§ 4,862,000 3.1%
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
FINANCIATL STATEMENTS

PROPRIETARY INDIVIDUAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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LANDER COUNTY
CCP (CONSTRUCTION OF CAFITAL PROJECTS) FUND

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparaiive Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 3¢, 2015)

REVENUES:
Tax revenue
Net proceeds of mines
Total tax revenue

Investment earnings
Interest

Net increase (decrease) in the fair

value of investiments

Total investment earnings

Other revenue
Miscellaneous
Total other revenue
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
General government
Services and supplies
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Total other financing sources {uses}

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balange, end of year

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
QOriginal Final Actual {Unfavorable) 2015
3 - 3 - $ 1,951,755 $ 1954755 ¥ 7,450,222
- - 1,951,755 1,951,755 7,450,222
553,850 553,850 756,196 202,346 652,423
- - 812,939 812,939 238,302
553,850 553,850 1,569,135 1,015,285 890,725
- - 210,000 210,000 20431
- - 210,000 210,000 29,431
553,850 553,850 3,730,890 3,177,040 8,440,378
300,000 300,000 3,315 296,085 9439
31,217,305 31,217,305 11,226,169 19,991,136 23,010,597
31,517,305 31,517,305 11,229,484 20,287,821 23,020,036
(30,963,455) (30,963 455) (7,498,594) 23,464,861 (14,579,658)
- - 90,079 90,079 1938086
- - 50,079 90,079 1,938,086
(30,963,455) (30,963,455 (7,408,515) 23,554,940 (12,641,572)
50,614,826 50,614 826 50,614,826 - 63,256,398

$ 19,651,371

$ 19,651,371

$ 43,206,311

§ 23,554,940

$ 50,614,826
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LANDER COUNTY

ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

REVENUES:
Tax revenue
Ad valorem
Total tax revenue

Intergovernmental
State motor vehicle fuel tax
Forest reserve fees
Tatal intergovernmental

Investment earnings
Interest
Net increase {decrease) in the fair
value of investments
Total investment earnings

Other revene
Miscellaneous
‘Total other revenues
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Public works
Highway and sireets - Austin

Salarles and wages

Enmployee benefits

Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Total highway and streets - Austin

Highway and streets - Battle Mountain
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital cutlay
Total highway and strests - BM

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (vnder) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses);
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balancs, end of year

Variance

Budget Faverable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2015
$ 1,240,264 1,240,264 $ 1,058,221 3 (182,043) 3 1,041,540
1,240,264 1,240,264 1,058,221 (182,043) 1,041,540
965,430 965,430 1,009,215 43,785 1,012,314
11,500 11,500 58,572 47,072 39,688
976,930 976,930 1,067,787 90,357 1,072,002
- - - - 32,379
. - - - 10,942
- - - - 43,321
200 200 120 (80) 240
200 200 120 (80) 240
2,217,394 2,217,394 2,126,128 (91,266) 2,157,103
407,195 407,185 340,422 66,773 364,744
285,725 285,725 178,062 107,663 192,962
291,565 291,565 234,497 57,068 191,366
50,000 50,000 - 50,000 -
1,034,485 1,034,485 752,981 281,504 749,072
562,445 562,445 532,158 30,289 513,409
388,975 388,975 226,543 162,432 252,644
413,920 413,920 236,983 176,937 293,570
222,450 222,450 - 222,450 -
1,587,790 1,587,790 095,682 592,108 1,059,623
2,622,275 2,622,275 1,748,663 873,612 1,808,695
{404,881) (404,881) 377465 782,346 348,408
- B - - 172,450
15,500 15,500 5,121 (10,379 0,626
- - - - {43321
15,500 15,500 5,121 (10,379 135,758
(389,381) (389,381) 382,586 771,967 434,163
4,970,718 4,970,718 4,970,718 - 4,486,553
$ 4,581,337 § 4,581,337 § 5353304 $ T71967 . §  A970,718
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LANDER COUNTY
INDIGENT ¥UND

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

REVENIUES:
Tax revenue
Ad valorem
Total tax revenue
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Weltare
Health nurse
Salaries and wages
Employes benefits
Services and supplies
Total health nurse

Other indigent
Salarics and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Total other indigent
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
Original Final Actual {Unfavorable) 2015

3 504,798 $ 504,798 § 430,682 $ (74,116) $ 425206
504,798 504,798 430,682 (74,116) 425,206
504,798 504,798 430,682 {74,116) 425,206

44 400 44,400 37,436 6,964 43,004
26,470 26470 10,843 15,627 26,086
588,700 538,700 133,178 455,522 123,836
659,570 659,570 181,457 478,113 192,926
24,955 25,205 25,131 74 22,399
15,295 15,045 11,200 3,845 10,372
21,000 21,000 614 20,384 1,208
61,250 61,250 36,945 24,305 33,979
720,820 720,820 218,402 502418 226,905
(216,022) {216,022) 212,280 428,302 198,301
(216,022) (216,022) 212,280 428,302 198,301
1,384,545 1,384,545 1,384,545 - 1,186,244

$ 1,163,523 $ 1,168,523 $ 1,596,825 3 428 302 § 1,384,545
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LANDER COUNTY
STATE MEDICAL INDIGENT FUND
Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
Criginal Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES:
Tax revenue
Ad valorem $ 437,937 $ 437,937 b 373,761 $ {64,176) $ 368,977
Ad valorem auto 100,291 100,291 85,493 {14,758) 84,505
Net procesds of mines - - 84,054 84,054 432,843
Net proceeds auto - - 15,249 19,249 98,124
Total tax revenue 538,228 538,238 562,557 24,329 985,449
Investment earnings
Interest 4,366 4.566 - (4,566) 38,377
Net increase (decrease) in the fair
value of investrnents - - - - 1,864
Total investment earninps 4,566 4,566 - {4,566) 60,241
Total revenues 542,794 542,794 562,557 19,763 1,045,690
EXPENDITURES:
Welfars
Salaries and wages 24,955 25,205 25,131 74 24,069
Employee benefits 15,575 15,325 10,967 4,338 10,672
Services and supplies 500,132 500,132 161,916 338,216 118,516
Remittance to state 822,482 822,482 330,759 491,723 304,954
Total expenditures 1,363,144 1,363,144 528,773 834,371 458211
Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (820,350) (820,350} 33,784 854,134 587,479
Net change in fund balance (820,350} (820,350 33,784 854,134 587,479
Fund balance, beginning of year 5915424 5915424 5,915,424 - 5,327,945
Fund balance, end of year $ 5,095,074 § 5,095,074 $ 5949208 $ 854,134 3 50915424
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LANDER COUNTY

AGRICULTURAL EXTENSION FUND
Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

REVENUES:
Tax revenue
Ad valorem
Total tax revenue
Total reventues

EXPENDITURES:
Community support
Salarics and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over {under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund bakance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
Original Final Actual {Unfavorable) 2015
3 100,291 $ 100,291 $ 85,579 3 (14,712) % 84,508
100,291 100,291 85,579 (14,712) 84,508
100,291 100,291 85,579 (14,712) 84,508
34,070 35,870 35,147 723 31,568
19,095 17,295 12,209 5,086 12,496
33,340 33,340 27,073 6,267 14,165
- - 4,016 {4,016) -
86,505 86,505 78,445 8,060 58,229
13,786 13,786 7,134 (6,652) 26279
13,786 13,786 7,134 (6,652) 26,279
267,590 267,590 267,590 - 241311
3 281,376 $ 281,376 3 274,124 3 {6,652) b 267,590
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LANDER COUNTY
AGLED SERVICES FUND
Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
Original Final Aciual (Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES:
Tax revenue .
Ad valorem by 568,315 3 568,315 3 484,931 $ (83,384) 478,836
Total tax revenue 568,315 568,313 484,931 (83,384) 478,836
Intergovernmental
Federal grants 61,225 61,225 47,904 (13,321) 66,349
Total intergovernmental 61,223 61,225 47,904 (13,321) 66,349
Charges for services
Meal fees 30,250 30,250 33,538 3,288 34,354
Total charges for services 30,250 30,250 33,538 3,283 34,854
Investment earnings
Interest - - - - 0,285
Net increase {(decrease) in the fair
value of investments - - - - 7,380
Total investment earnings - - - - 16,665
Other revenue
Miscellaneous 25,500 25,500 22,747 (2,753) 25,225
Total other revenue 25,500 25,500 22,747 (2,753) 25,225
Total revenues 685,290 685,290 589,120 {96,170) 621,929
EXPENDITURES:
Welfare
Senlor center
Salaries and wages 215,030 215,530 167,725 47,803 160,799
Employes benefits 130,825 130,325 87,098 42,327 83,443
Services and supplies 142,885 142,885 69,086 73,799 77,912
Capital outlay 23,500 23,500 “ 23,500 -
Total senior center 512,240 512,240 324,809 187,431 322,154
Austin scheol
Salaries and wages 9,180 9,180 5,977 3,203 5,704
Employee benefits 4,685 4,685 2,628 2,057 2,199
Services and supplies 8,160 8,160 . 4,036 4,124 3,971
Total austin school 22,025 22,025 12,641 9,384 11,874
Total expenditures 534,265 534,265 337,450 104,815 334,028
Excess of revenues
over {under} expenditures 151,025 151,025 251,670 100,645 287,901
Other {inancing sources (uses):
Transfers out - - - - (16,665)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - - (16,665)
Net change in fund balance 151,025 151,025 251,670 100,645 271,236
Fund balance, begiming of year 1,719,833 1,719,833 1,715,833 - 1,448,597
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,870,858 $ 1,870,858 ¥ 1,971,503 $ 100,645 1,719,833
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LANDER COUNTY
LANDER COUNTY LANDFILL FUND
Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Xxpenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

REVENUES:
Tax revernmig
Ad valorem
Net proceeds of aines
Total tax revenue

Charges for services
Gate fees
Total charges for services

Investment earnings
Interest
Net increase (decrease) in the fair
value of investments
Tatal investment ecarnings

Qther revenue
Misceflangous
Total other revenue
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Health and sanitation
Salaries and wages
Employes benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Total cther financing sources (uses)

Net change In fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
Chriginal Final Actual {Unfavorable) 2015
3 334,303 3 334,303 5 285,299 3 (49,004) 3 281,911
- - 64,163 64,163 330414
334,303 334,303 349,462 15,159 612,325
100,000 100,000 109,172 9,172 122,457
100,000 100,000 109,172 8,172 122,457
5,960 5,960 66,047 60,087 91,752
- - - - (32,714)
5,960 5,960 66,047 60,087 59,038
1,000 1,000 - (1,000) -
1,000 1,000 - (1,000 -
441,263 441,263 524,681 83,418 793,820
171,305 171,308 140,463 30,842 164,313
132,500 132,500 61,554 70,946 75,925
266,750 266,750 131,632 135,118 386,998
806,940 806,940 736,936 70,004 -
1,377,495 1,377,495 1,070,585 306,910 627,234
{936,232) (936,232) (545,904) 390,328 166,584
- - - - 24,440
- - - - 24,440
(936,232) (936,232) (545,904) 390,328 191,024
7,235,706 7,235,706 7,235,706 - 7,044,682
$ 67299474 3 6,299474 $ 6,689,802 $ 390,328 $ 7235706
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LANDER COUNTY
LANDER COUNTY AIRPORTS FUND
Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Variance
Budget Favorable Actaal
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES:
Tax revenus
Ad valorem 3 267,442 5 267,442 $ 228,196 g {39,246) 3 225,307
Gasoline tax 500 500 599 99 228
Total tax revere 267,942 267,942 228,795 {39,147) 225,535
Charges for services
User fees and fuel sales 4,300 4,300 4,703 403 2,768
Total charges for services 4300 4,300 4,703 403 2,768
Investment earnings
Interest 992 992 (392} 1,722
Total investment esrnings 092 992 (992) 1,722
Other revenues
Rent 16,500 16,500 19,136 2,656 16,905
Total other revenues 16,500 16,500 19,156 2,656 16,906
Total revemies 289,734 289,734 252,654 {37,080) 244,931
EXPENDITURES:
General government
Services and supplies 173,300 173,300 130,511 42,789 104,436
Capital outlay 4,610 4,610 i1 4,599 -
Total expenditures 177,510 177,910 130,522 47,388 104,436
Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures 111,824 111,824 122,132 10,308 142 495
Other financing scurces {uses):
Transters out {15,500) (15,500) (5,121) 10,379 {6,626}
Total other financing sources (uses) (15,500) (15,500) (5,121) 10,379 (6,626)
Net change in fund balance 96,324 96,324 117,011 20,687 135,369
Fund balancs, beginning of year 1,492 137 1,492,137 1,492,137 - 1,356,268
Fund balance, end of year 3 1588461 $ 1,588,461 $ 1,609,148 3 20,687 $ 1,492137
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LANDER COUNTY
LANDER ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND
Special Revenue Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Variance
Budeet Favorable Aciual
Original Final Actual {Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Federal grants $ 16,000 3 16,000 $ - $ (16,000) $ -
State grants 30,000 30,000 79,799 49,799 11,015
Total intergovernmental 46,000 46,000 79,799 33,799 11,015
Other revenue
Miscellaneous - - - - 6,798
Total other revenue - - - - 6,798
Total revenues 46,000 46,000 79,799 33,799 17,813
EXPENDITURES:
Comununity support
Services and supplies 20,000 20,000 8,000 14,000 34,734
Capital outlay 66,775 66,775 73,799 (7,024) -
Total expenditures 86,775 86,775 79,799 6,976 34,734
Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (40,775) (40,715) - 40,775 {16,921)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - - - 20,000
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - - 20,000
Net change in fund balance (40,775) {40,775) - 40,775 3,079
Fund balance, begiuning of year 26,355 26,355 26,355 - 23,276
Fund balance, end of year 3 (14,420) 3 (14,420) 5 26,355 $ 40,775 3 26,355
82
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LANDER COUNTY
DOE NUCLEAR REPOSITORY FUND
Special Revenne Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES;
Intergovernmental
Federal grants $ 108,900 3 108,900 $ 69,432 $ (39,468} 148,034
Total intergovernmental 108,200 108,900 69.432 (39,468) 148,034
Investment earnings
Interest 212 212 - (212) 263
Total investment earnings 212 212 - (212) 263
Total revenues 109,112 109,112 69432 {39.680) 143,297
EXPENDITURES:
Public safety
Salaries and wages - - - - 38,567
Empleyee benefits - - - - 9,892
Services and supplies 109,112 109,112 69,432 39,680 99,808
Total expenditures 109,112 109,112 69,432 39,680 148,297
Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures ) - - - - -
Net change in fund balance - - - - -
Fund balance, beginning of year - - - - -
Fund balance, end of year $ - 3 - 3 - 3 - -
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LANDER COUNTY
REGIONAL STREETS & BIGHWAYS FUND
Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
{With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
Original Final Actual {Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES:
Tax revenue
(Gasoline tax $ 392,835 3 392,835 $ 379,684 3 (13,151) S 394,906
Totaf tax revenue 392,835 392 835 379,684 {13,151} 394,906
Investment earnings
Interest - - - - 10,970
Net increase (decrease) in the fair
value of investments - - - - 8,352
Total investment earnings - ~ - - 19,322
Total revenues 392,835 392,835 379,684 (13,151) 414,278
EXPENDITURES:
Public works
Services and supplies 50,000 50,000 - 30,000 -
Capital outlay 1,450,000 1,450,000 - 1,450,000 -
Total expenditures 1,500,000 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 -
Excess of revenues
over {under} expenditures (1,107,165) (1,107,165) 379,684 1,486,849 414228
Otlter financing sonrces (uses):
Transfers out - - - - (19,322)
Total other financing sources {uses) - - - - (19,322)
Net change in fund balance (1,107.165) (1,107,165) 379,684 1,486,849 394906
Fond balance, beginning of year 2,071,236 2,071,236 2,071,236 - 1,676,330
Fund balance, end of year $ 964,071 $ 964,071 $§ 2,450,920 $ 1486849 § 2071236
84
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LANDER COUNTY
TOWN OF AUSTIN FUND
Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES:
Tax revenus
Ad valorem 3 9,772 $ 9,772 3 9,087 $ (685) 3 6,206
Net precseds of mines u - 8,761 8,791 -
Franchise taxes 7,200 7,200 8,314 1,114 8,758
Total Taxes 16,972 16,972 26,192 9,220 14,964
Licenses and permits
Business licenses 1,500 1,500 1,200 (300) 1,300
Gaming licenses 275 275 - (275) -
Animal licenses 50 50 - {50} -
Total licenses and permits 1,825 1,825 1,200 (625) 1,300
Intergovernmental
Consolidated tax 14,120 14,120 15,299 1,179 14,807
Tatal intergoverrmental 14,120 14,120 15,299 1,179 14,807
Charges for services
Cemetary fees 500 500 200 (300} -
Tolal charges for services 500 500 200 (300) -
Tnvestiment earnings
Interest 40 40 713 673 83
Total investment earnings 40 40 713 673 83
Other revenue
Miscellaneous - - 10 10 -
Total other revenue - - 10 10 -
Total revenues 33,457 33,457 43,614 10,157 31,136
EXPENDITURES:
General goverinent
Services and supplies 29,700 29,700 24,103 5,597 22,657
Total general govermment 29,700 29,700 24,103 5,597 22,657
Public works
Services and supplies 12,000 12,000 2,740 9,260 7,385
Total public works 12,000 12,000 2,740 9,260 7,385
Tealth and senifation
Services and supplies 6,000 6,000 6,000 - 6,000
‘Total health and sanitation 6,000 6,000 6,000 - 6,000
Culture and recreation
Services and supplies 7,500 7,500 7,500 - 7,500
Teotal cultvre and recreation 7,500 7,500 7,500 " 7,500
Tolal expenditures 55,200 55,200 40,343 14,857 43,542
Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (21,743) (21,743 3,271 25,014 (12,388)
Net change in fund balance (21,743) (21,743) 3,271 25,014 (12,386)
Fund balance, beginning of year 79,090 79,690 79,690 - 02,076 .
Fund balance, end of year § 504 5 39l 5 @96l §_ 5014 § W \
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LANDER COUNTY
TOWN OF BATTLE MOUNTAIN FUND
Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 36, 2016

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

REVENUES:
Tax revenue
Ad valorem
Franchise taxes
Total tax revenue

Licenses and permits
Business licenses
Gaming licenses
Animal licenses
Total licenses and permits

Intergoverninental
Consolidated Tax
Total intergovermmental

Investment earnings
Interest
Total investment sarnings

Other revenue
Misceflaneous
Total other revenue
Total revenues

EXPENDITURLS:
General government
Services and supplies
Capital outlay
Total general government

Culture and recreation
Capital outlay

Total culture and recreation

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
Qriginal Final Actual (Untavorable) 015

3 ﬁ3,803 3 23,803 $ 22,638 $ (1,165) 21,255
50,000 50,000 51,947 1,947 56,810
73,803 73,803 74,585 782 78,065
20,500 20,300 25,700 5,200 26,610
18,000 18,000 16,613 (1,387) 14,887
250 230 125 (123) 220
38,750 38,750 42,438 3,688 48,717
210,968 210,968 229,130 18,162 221,263
210,963 210,968 229,130 18,162 221263
600 600 9,727 9,127 1,042

600 600 8,727 9,127 1,042

. - 500 500 2,042

- - 500 500 2,042

324,121 324,121 356,380 32,259 344,129
326,000 326,000 313,703 7,297 203,658
50,000 50,000 - 50,000 -
376,000 376,000 318,703 57,297 203,658
65,750 63,750 33,393 32,357 69,154
65,750 65,750 33,393 32,357 69,154
441,750 441,750 352,096 §9,654 272,812
(117,629) (117,629) 4,284 121,913 71,317
(117,629) (117,629) 4,284 121,913 71,317
951,417 951,417 051,417 - 880,100
$ 833,788 3 833,788 3 955,701 $ 121,913 951,417
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LANDER COUNTY
CULTURE AND RECREATION
Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
{With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 34, 2015)

Variance
Budgat Favorable Actual
Original Final Actual (Unfaverable) 2015
REVENUES:
Tax revenue
Ad valorem $ 598,402 3 598,402 5 510,602 3 (87,800) 3 504,187
Total tax revenue 598,402 598,402 510,602 {87,800) 504,187
Intergovemmental
Federal payment in licu of taxes 450,000 450,000 1,058,585 608,585 889,537
Totzl intergovemmental 450,000 450,000 1,038,585 608,585 889,537
Charges for services
Cemetary fees 3,200 3,200 5,715 2,515 2,533
Green fees 35,000 35,000 23,727 (11,273) 51,944
Golf cart fees 7,000 7,000 3,500 (1,500) 6,050
Pool fees 15,000 15,000 5,835 {5,165) 13,868
Trail fees 4,000 4,000 75 {3,925) 3,775
Event fees - - 1,125 1,123 400
Total charges for services 64,200 64,200 41,977 (22,223) 78,570
Investement earnings
Interest - - - - 38,945
Net increase (decrease) in the fair
value of mvestments - - - - 17,040
Total investment earnings - - - - 55,985
Total revenues 1,112,602 1,112,602 1,611,164 498,562 1,528,276

(continued}
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LANDER COUNTY
CULTURE AND RECREATION
Special Revenne Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

EXPENDITURES:
Health and sanitation
Cemeteries
Services and supplies
Total cemeteries

Culture and Recreation
Battle Mountain golf course
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outlay
Total Battle Mountain golf course

Lander County parks
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Total Lander County parks

Lander County pools
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Total Lander County pools

Battle Mountain civic center
Services and supplies
Total Battle Mountain civic center

Baitle Mountain & Austin libraries
Services and supplies
Total BM & Austin libraries
Total expenditures

Hxcess of revenues
over -(under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
QOriginal Final Actual {Un#avorable) 2015

43,500 43,500 18,447 25,053 20,910
43,500 43,500 18,447 25,053 20,910
130,355 130,355 88,186 42,169 113,733
102,250 102,230 49,085 53,165 54,589
171,400 171,400 120,123 51,277 133,846

- - - - 38,026
404,005 404,005 257,394 146,611 360,194
54,430 54480 15,266 39,214 49,650
38,740 38,740 8,623 30,115 25,875
324,025 324,025 242177 81,848 233,884
417,245 417,245 266,068 151,177 309,409
163,310 163,310 45,636 117,674 74,942
47,935 471,935 12,124 35,811 24271
72,380 72,380 27,271 45,109 38,524
233,625 283,625 85,031 198,594 137,737
35,000 35,000 27,250 7,750 23,493
35,000 35,000 27,250 7,750 23,403
116,726 116,726 115,495 1,231 112,015
116,726 116,726 115,495 1,231 [12,015
1,300,101 1,300,101 769,685 530,416 063,758
{187,459) (187,499) 841,479 1,028,978 564,521
(187,499) (187,499) 41,479 1,028,978 508,536
5,149,952 3,149,952 5,149,952 - 4,641,416
4,962,453 $ 4962453 5,991 43¢ $ 1,028,973 3 5149952
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LANDER COUNTY
RESERVE FUND
Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30,2015

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
Original Final Actual {Unfavorable) 2015
REVENULS:
Investement earnings
Interest 3 240 3 240 $ 6,786 $ 6,546 $ 533
Total investment eamings 240 240 6,786 6,546 533
Other revenue
Geothermal revenue 72,750 72,150 252,661 179,911 180,572
Total other revenue 72,750 72,750 252,661 178,911 180,572
Total revenues 72,990 72,990 259,447 186,457 181,105
EXPENDITURES:
General government
Capital outlay 450,000 450,000 - 450,000 189,229
Total Expenditures 450,000 450,000 - 450,000 189,229
Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (377,010) (377,010} 259,447 636,457 (8,124)
Net change in fund balance {377,010) (377,010) 259,447 636,457 (8,124)
Fund balance, beginning of year 563,181 563,181 563,181 - 571,308
TFund balance, end of year b 186,171 3 186,171 $ 822,628 $ 636,457 3 563,181
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LANDER COUNTY
TITLE I SRS/CRA I'UND
Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
Original Final Actual {Unfavorahle) 2015
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Forest reserve fees $ 7,000 3 7,000 $ 6,489 3 {(511) $ -
Total intergovernimental 7,000 7,000 6,489 {511) -
Investment earnings
Interest 154 154 - (154) 185
Total investment earnings 154 154 - (154} 185
Total revenues 7,154 7,154 6,489 (665) 185
EXPENDITURES:
Public works
Services and supplies 183,275 183,275 - 183,275 -
Total expenditures 183,275 183,275 - 183,275 -
Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (176,121) (176,121) 6,489 182,610 135
Net change in fund balance (176,121) (176,121) 6,489 182,610 185
Fund balance, beginning of year 183,369 183,369 183,369 - 183,184
Fund balance, end of year 3 7248 b 7,248 3 189,858 $ 182,610 % 183,369
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ADMINISTRATIVE ASSESSMENT FEES FUND

LANDER COUNTY

Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revennes, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

REVENUES:
Charges for services
Administrative assessments
Total charges for services
‘Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Tudicial
Services and supplies
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing seurces (uses):
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2015

3 13,000 $ 13,000 5 21,726 3 8,726 5 16,087
13,000 13,000 21,726 8,726 16,087

13,000 13,000 21,726 8,726 16,087

22,000 22,000 2,354 19,646 2,551
22,000 22,000 2,354 19,646 2,551
(5,000) (9,000) 19,372 28,372 13,536
(17,738) (17,728) (15,385) 2,353 (16,432)
(17,738) (17,738} (15,385) 2,353 (16422)
(26,738) (26,738} 3,987 30,725 (2,898)
33,548 33,548 33,548 - 36,444

$ 6,810 $ 6,810 3 37,535 3 30,728 $ 33,548
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LANDER COUNTY

GENETIC MARKING TESTING FUND

Special Revenue Fund

Sehedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

REVENUES:
Charges for services
Fees
Total charges for services
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Jadicial
Services and supplies
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
aver {under) expenditures

Net change in fund balanece

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
Qriginal Final Actual {Unfavorable) 2015
3 4,100 $ 9,100 9,754 b 634 6,717
9,100 9,100 9,754 654 6,777
9,100 9,100 9,754 G654 6,777
$ 9,100 3 2,100 9,754 (654) 6,777
9,100 9,100 9,754 (654) 0,777
$ - 3 - - 3 - -
92

[

[E—1

[ AN [—

A



LANDER COUNTY
FORENSIC SERVICES FUND
Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
{With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Variance
Budget Favorable Acinal
Qriginal Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES:
Charges for services
Fees 3 1,600 § 1,600 3 1,920 5 320 3 1,190
Total charges for services 1,600 1,600 1,920 328 1,190
Total revenues 1,600 1,600 1,920 320 1,190
EXPENDITURES:
Public safety
Services and supplies 2,500 2,500 - 2,500 6,657
Total expenditures 2,500 2,500 - 2,500 6,657
Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (500) (900) 1,920 2,320 (5.467)
Net change in fund balance (S00) (200) 1,920 2,820 {5,467y
Fund balance, beginning of year 3,283 3,283 3,283 - 8,750
Fund balance, end of year $ 2,383 $ 2,383 3 5,203 $ 2,820 3 3,233
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LANDER COUNTY
DISTRICT DRUG COURT I'UND
Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

REVENUES:
Charges for services
Fees
Total charges far services
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Judicial
Services and supplies
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
Qriginal Final Actual {Unfavorable) 2015

3 8,500 $ 8,500 $ 6,735 3 (1,761} 1,180
8,500 8,500 6,739 (1,761) 1,180

§,500 8,500 6,739 (1,761) 1,180

35,000 35,000 4,182 30,818 5,968
35,000 35,000 4,182 30,818 5,908
{26,500) {26,500} 2,557 29057 (4,788)
(26,500) (26,500) 2,557 29,057 (4,788)
55,269 55,269 55,269 - 60,057

$ 28,769 3 28,769 $ 57,826 $ 29,057 55,269
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LANDER COUNTY
COURT FACILITY FEES FUND
Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 3¢, 2016
(With Comparative Actnal Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Variance
Budget Favorable Actnal
Original Final Actual {Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES:
Charges for services
Court fees b 22,000 $ 22,000 3 30,890 ] 8,390 22,965
Total charges for services 22,000 22,000 30,890 $,890 22,965
Total revenues 22,000 22,000 30,890 8,890 22,965
Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures 22,000 22,000 30,890 8,890 22,965
Other finaneing sources (uses): :
Transfers out {34,915 (34,915 (34,915) - (36,582)
Total other financing sources (uses) (34,915) (34,915 (34,915) - (36,582)
Net change in fund balance (12,915) (12,915 {4,025) 8,890 (13,617)
Fund balance, beginning of year 141,280 141,280 141,280 154 897
Fund balance, end of year $ 128,365 $ 128,365 b 137,255 $ 8,890 141,280
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LANDER COUNTY

JUVENILE ADMINISTRATIVE ASSESSMENT FUND

Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revennes, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

REVENUES:
Charges for services
Administrative assessments
Total charges for services
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Judicial
Services and supplies
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over {under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2015
7,500 7,500 6,982 3 (518) 5,554
7,500 7,500 6,982 (518) 5,554
7,500 1,500 6,982 (518) 5,554
3,000 3,000 2,895 105 1,994
3,000 3,000 2,895 105 1,994
4,500 4,500 4,087 {413) 3,560
4,500 4,500 4,087 (413) 3,560
4808 4,808 4 808 - 1,248
9,308 9,308 8,805 $ (413) 4,808
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I LANDER COUNTY
. MINE MAP FEES FUND
l Special Revenue Fund
. Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
| Budget and Actual
| ‘ For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
: (With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Variance
. Budget Favorable Actual
| Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES: '
l ! Charges for services
Map fees 3 16,000 3 16,000 3 21,290 3 5,290 11,120
. Total charges for services 15,000 16,000 21,290 5,290 11,120
I \ Total revenues 16,000 16,000 21,290 5,290 11,120
| - EXPENDITURES:
General governinent
i A Services and supplies 153,500 153,500 13,392 140,108 47434
. Total expenditures 153,500 153,500 13,362 140,108 47 434
l Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (137,500) {137,500) 7,898 145,398 (36,314)
Net change in fund balance (137,500) (137,500) 7,858 145,388 (36,314)
[ Fund balance, beginning of year 156,774 156,774 156,774 - 193,088
[ : Fund balance, end of year 3 19,274 § 159,274 $ 164,672 $ 145358 156,774
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LANDER COUNTY
TECHNOLOGY FEES FUND
Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
) Original Final Actual {Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES:
Charges for services
Recorder fees $ 8,500 b3 8,500 $ 7,820 b (680) $ 6,516
Assessor commissions 300,000 300,000 337,277 37,277 701,267
Total charges for services 308,500 308,500 345,097 36,597 707,783
Investment earnings
Interest 2,146 2,146 22,911 20,765 2,454
Total investment carnings 2,146 2,146 22,911 20,765 2,454
Total revenues 310,646 310,646 368,008 37,362 710,237
EXPENDITURES:
CGeneral government
Recorder
Services and supplies 25,000 25,000 2,360 22,640 2,283
Total recorder 25,000 25,000 2,360 22 640 2,283
Assessor
Services and supplies 1,200,000 1,200,000 358,699 841,301 571,168
Capital outlay 645,000 643,000 483,992 161,008 67,932
Total assessor 1,845,000 1,845,000 842,691 1,002,309 639,100
Total expenditures 1,870,000 1,870,000 845,051 1,024,949 641,383
Excess of revenues
over {under} expenditures (1,559,354) (1,559,354) (477,043) 1,082,311 68,854
Other finanecing sources (uses):
Transfers out - - {90,079) (90,079} {138,086)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - (90,079 (580,079) (138,086)
Net change in fund balance (1,559,354) (1,559,354) (567,122) 992232 {69,232)
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,537,015 2,537,015 2,537,015 - 2,606,247
Fund balance, end of year $ 977,661 $ 977,661 $ 19693893 $ 992232 § 2537015
98

.

et

4

0

oo ] [N R v Loz

[

R FRER MEn FWR O RT W




LANDER COUNTY

AUSTIN CAPITAL ACQUISITION FUND

Capital Projects ¥und

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30,

2016

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
QOriginal Final Actual {Unfavorable) 2013
REVENUES:
Investment earnings
Interest, $ 18 3 18 ¥ 276 ) 258 3 24
Total investment earnings 18 18 276 258 24
Total revenues 18 18 276 258 24
EXPENDITURES:
Public works
Services and supplies 12,000 12,000 182 11,818 -
Total expendimires 12,000 12,000 182 11,818 -
Excess of revenues
over {under) expenditures (11,982) (11,982) 94 12,076 24
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 1,665 1,665 3,237 1,572 3,048
Total other financing sources (vses) 1,665 1,665 3,237 1,572 3,048
Net change in fund balance {10,317 (10,317 3,331 13,648 3,072
Fund balance, beginning of year 26,668 26,668 26,668 - 23,506
Fund balance, end of year 5 16,351 $ 16,351 $ 29,999 $ 13,648 $ 26,668
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LANDER COUNTY
LEQUIPMENT/BUILDING REPLACEMENT FUND
Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
{With Comparative Actual Amownts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES:
Tax revenueg
Net proceeds of mines 3 - 3 - $ 131,866 5 131,866 $ 3,000,000
Total tax revenue - - 131,866 131,866 3,000,000
Investment earmings
Interest - - - - 69,623
Net increase (decrease) in the fair
value of investments - - - - 41428
Total investment earnings - - - - 111,051
Total revenues - - 131,866 131,866 3,111,051
EXPENDITURES:
General government
Services and supplies 780,645 730,645 385,130 395,515 180,886
Total general government 780,645 780,645 385,130 395,515 180,886
Public works
Capital outlay 1,534,000 1,534,000 661,643 872,357 887,640
Fotal public works 1,534,000 1,534,000 661,643 872,357 887,640
Total expenditures 2,314,645 2,314,645 1,046,773 1,267,872 1,068,526
Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (2,314,645) (2,314,645) (914,907) 1,399,738 2,042.525
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out - - - - (111,051)
Total other financing sources (1ses) - - - - (111,051)
Net change in fund balance (2,314,645 (2,314,645} (914,907) 1,399,738 1,931,474
Fund balance, beginning of year $,075,344 8,075,344 8,075,344 - 6,143,870
Fund balance, end of year $ 5,760,699 $§ 5,760,699 3 7,160,437 $ 1,399,738 3 8,075,344
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LANDER COUNTY
CAPITAL ACQUISITION FUND
Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Variance
Budget Faverable Actnal
Original Final Actual _ (Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES:
Tax revenue
Ad Valorem 3 200,582 h) 200,582 3 171,151 5 (29431) $ 169,000
Net proceeds of mines - - 38,498 38408 198,249
Total tax revenue 200,582 200,582 209,649 9,067 367,249
Investment earnings
Interest 2,310 2,310 - {2,310) 2,837
Tetal investment eatnings . 2,310 2,310 - (2,310) 2,837
Total revenues 202,892 202,892 209,649 6,757 370,086
EXPENDITURES:
Public works
Services and supplies 40,000 40,000 145 35,855 9,437
Capital outlay 60,000 60,000 - 50,000 15,100
Total expenditures 100,000 100,000 145 96855 24,537
Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures 102,862 102,892 209,504 106,612 345,549
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (42,500) (42,500} {22,291 20,209 (20,964)
Tetal other financing sources (uses} {42,500) {42,500) (22,291} 20209 (20,594)
Net change in fund balance 60,392 60,392 187,213 126,821 324,555
Fund balance, beginning of year 3,034,527 3,034,527 3,034,527 - 2,709,972
Fund balance, end of year § 3,094919 $§ 3,0947919 § 37221,740 3 126,821 $ 3034527
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LANDER COUNTY

BATTLE MOUNTAIN CAPITAL ACQUISITION FUND
Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

REVENUES:
Investient earnings
Interest
Total investment earnings
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
General government
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (nses):
Transfers in
Total other financing sources {uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balanee, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance

Budget Favorable Actual

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2015
3 i18 3 118 3 1,688 3 1,570 3 150
118 118 1,688 1,570 150
118 118 1,688 1,570 150
40,000 40,000 1,072 38,928 -
40,000 40,000 1,072 38,928 -
{39,882) (39,882) 616 40,498 150
9,801 9,801 19,054 9,253 17,945
9,801 9,801 19,054 9,253 17,945
(30,081 (30,081) 19,670 49,751 18,095
163,753 163,753 163,753 - 145,658
3 133,672 3 133,672 5 183,423 3 49,751 5 163,753
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LANDER COUNTY
EMERGENCY MAINTENANCE FUND
Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES:
Investment earnings
Interest b 3,055 $ 3,09 $ - 3 (3,008) § 6,603
Net increase (decrease) in the fair
value of investments - - - - {5,119)
Total investment earnings 3,096 3,096 - (3,096) 1,484
Total revenues 3,096 3,096 - (3,096} 1,484
EXPENDITURES:
General government
Services and supplies 750,000 750,000 84,503 665,097 112,891
Total expenditures 750,000 750,000 84,903 665,097 112,891
Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures {746,904) (746,904) (84,90 662,001 (111,407)
Net change in fund balance (746,904) (746,904) (84,903 662,001 (111,407}
Fund balance, beginning of year 3,566,042 3,566,042 3,566,042 - 3,677,449
Fund balance, end of year 5 2,819,138 § 2819138 § 3,481,139 $ 662,001 $ 3,566,042
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LANDER COUNTY

AIRPORT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenites, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actunal
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

{With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

REVENUES:
Tax revenue
Net proceeds of mines
Total tax revenue

Intergovermmental
Federal grants
Total interpovernmental

Investment earnings
Itcrest
Net increase (decrease) in the fair
value of investments
Total investment earnings
Tofal revenues

EXPENDITURES:
General government
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
Qriginal Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2015
§ - $ - $ 43,955 $ 43,955 b 550,000
- - 43,955 43,955 550,000
407,000 407,000 307,345 {99,655} 672,807
407,000 407,000 307,345 (99,655) 672,807
- - - - 28,331
R - - - 12,639
- - - - 40,970
407,000 407,000 351,300 {55,700 1,263,777
1,919,175 1,919,175 1,064,791 854,384 724,523
1,919,175 1,919,175 1,064,791 854,384 724,523
(1,512,175) {1,512,175) (713,491) 798,684 539,254
. - - - (40,970)
- : - . (40,970)
(1,512,175) (1,512,173) {713,491 798,684 498,284
4,208,317 4,208,317 4,208,317 - 3,710,033
§ 2,696,142 $ 2,606,142 § 3,494,826 $ 798,684 $ 4208317
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LANDER COUNTY
COTURT FACTLITIES CAPITAL FUND
Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

{(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Variance
Budget Favorable Actual
Qriginal Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2015
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
State grants 5 - 3 - $ 10,000 10,000 $ -
Total intergovernmental - - 10,000 10,000 -
Investment Farnings
Interest 1,262 1,262 9,418 8,156 14,360
Net increase (decrease) in the fair
value of investments - - - - 4.090
Total investment earnings 1,262 1262 9,418 8,156 18,450
Tetal revenues 1,262 1,262 19,418 18,156 18,450
EXPENDITURES:
General govermmnent
Capital outlay 1,250,000 1,250,000 1,000,000 250,000 -
Total expenditures 1,250,000 1,250,000 1,000,000 250,000 -
Excess of revenues
over {under} expenditures {1,248,738) (1,248,738) (980,582) 268,156 18,450
Other fiuancing sources (uses):
Transfers in 52,655 52,653 50,300 (2,353) 53,013
Total other financing sources {uses) 52,655 52,653 50,300 (2,353) 53,013
Net change in fund balance (1,196,083) (1,196,085) (930,282) 265,803 71,463
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,578,519 1,578,519 1,578,519 - 1,507,056
Fund balance, end of year $ 382,436 5 382,434 $ 648,237 265,803 $ 1,578,519
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Schedule of Revenues, FExpenses and Changes in Net Position

LANDER COUNTY
BATTLE MOUNTAIN WATER FUND
Proprietary Fund

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended Jume 30, 2016
(With Cemparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Water use fees
Rent
Miscelleneous
Total operaiing revenues

OPERATING EXPENDITURES:
Salaries and wages
Employee bencfits
Services and supplies
Depreciation
Total operating expenditures

Operating income {Loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

INCOME (LLOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRANSFERS
Contritutions

Met change in net position

Net position, beginring of year
Restatement adjustment

Net position, end of year

Variance
Budeet Favorable Aciual
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)} 2013

5 700,000 $ 700,000 $ 764,612 3 64,612 b 721,193
- - 1,505 1,505 1,205

« - 328 328 638

700,000 700,000 766,445 66,445 723,086
169,640 169,640 109,335 60,305 136,110
120,553 120,555 (36,129) 136,684 63,094
540,375 540,375 275,153 265,222 343,074
206,750 206,750 405,671 {198,921) 281,823
1,037,320 1,037,320 754,030 283,290 824,101
(337,320) {337.320) 12,415 349,735 (101,015)
2,244 2,244 30,920 28,676 3,018

2,244 2,244 30,920 28,676 3,018

- - 100,173 100,173 2,036,486

(335,076) (335,076} 143,508 478,584 1,938,489
19,874,114 19,874,114 19,874,114 - 18,197,190
- - - - {261,565)

3 19,539,038 $ 19,539,038 $ 20,017,622 3 478,584 $ 19,874,114
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LANDER COUNTY
BATTLE MOUNTAIN SEWER FUND
Proprietary Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

{(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Sewer use fees
Rent
Miscellancons
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENDITURES:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Depreciaticn
Total operating expenditures

Qperating income (loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment carnings
County option sales tax
Total nor-operating revenues (expenses)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRANSTFERS
Contributions

Net change in net position

Net pesition, beginning of year
Restatement adjustment

Net position, end of year

Variance

Budget Favorable Actual

QOriginal Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2015
3 701,000 $ 701,000 $ 716,176 $ 15,176 3 692,654
800 300 1,505 05 1,205
1,000 1,600 1,915 913 .-
702,800 702,800 719,596 16,796 693,859
146,940 146,940 104,472 42,468 142,415
120,555 120,555 (32,815) 153,370 65,810
477,300 477,300 278,259 199,041 272,814
340,000 340,000 355,893 (15,893) 313,928
1,084,795 1,084,795 705,809 378,986 704,967
{381,995) (381,993) 13,787 395,782 (101,108)
4,830 4,930 78,374 73,444 7,824
700,000 700,000 672,936 (27,064 663,478
704,930 704,930 751,310 46,380 671,302
- n 1,107,481 1,107481 2269273
322,935 322,935 1,872,578 1,549,643 2,869,467
16,961,029 16,961,025 16,961,020 - 14,353,127
- - - - (261,565)
$ 17,283,964 § 17283964 $ 18,833,607 § 1,549,643 $ 16,561,029
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LANDER COUNTY
MT. LEWIS COMMUNICATION SYT'E FOUND
Proprietary Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Budget and Actunal
For the Year Ended June 39, 2016
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Variance
Budget Favorable Agctual
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 2015
OPERATING REVENUES:
Communigation use fees § 13,500 $ 13,500 5 13,200 3 (300 § 13,500
Total operating revenues 13,500 13,500 13,200 (300) 13,500
OPERATING EXPENDITURES:
Services and supplies 10,150 10,150 6,054 4,096 5,088
Depreciation 36,372 36,372 36,372 - 36,372
Total operating expenditures 46,522 46,522 42,426 4,096 42,060
Operating income (loss) (33,022) (33,022) (29,226) 3,796 (28,560)
Net change in net position (33,022) (33,022) (29,226) 3,796 (28,5600
Net position, beginning of year 300,520 300,520 300,520 - 329,080
Net position, end of year 3 267,498 3 267,498 $ 271,294 3 3,796 3 300,520
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fiduciary Funds
Trust and Agency

Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity or as an agent
for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds, A gency Funds are custodial in
nature (assets equal ligbilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operztions,
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LANDER COUNTY
All Trust and Agency Funds

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

ARGENTA TELEVISION
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT
Assets;
Cash

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust
‘Total Liabilities

BATTLE MOUNTAIN FAIR AND
RECREATION FUND
Assets:
Cash

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust
Total Liabilities

AUSTIN FAIR AND
RECREATION FUND
Assets:
Cash

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust
Total Liabilities

SEWER AND WATER DISTRICT NO.2
Assets:
Cash

Tatal Assets

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust
Total Liabilities

LANDER COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Assets:
Cash
Total Assets

Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust
Total Liahilities

Balance Balance
6/30/2015 Additions Deductions 6/30/2016
219 52,075 3 51,977 3 317
$ 219 52,075 $ 51,977 3 317
5 219 3 52,075 3 51,977 $ 317
3 219 3 52,075 3 51,977 $ 317
$ 27,289 1,017,898 § 209,530 835,657
3 27,289 1,017,898 $ 209,530 835,657
$ 27,289 $ 1,017,898 3 209,530 835,657
§ 27,289 b 1,017,898 3 209,530 ] 835,657
$ - 212,699 33,110 $ 179,589
$ - $ 212,699 33,110 $ 179,589
3 - 3§ 212,699 3 33,110 $ 179,589
3 - $ 212,699 5 33,110 $ 179,589
$ 296 5 6,357 3 6,335 $ 318
b 296 6,357 $ 6,335 3 318
$ 296 5 6,357 $ 6,335 $ 318
3 206 $ 6,357 5 6,335 3 318
% 107,334 $ 3,537,548 3 5,989,604 $ 574,913
3 107,334 3 3,537,548 $ 5,989,604 5 574,913
$ 107,334 5 3,537,548 3 5,989,604 $ 574,913
$ 107,334 $ 3,537,548 3 5,989,604 3 574,913
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LANDER COUNTY
All Trust and Agency Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Balance Balance
6/30/2015 Additions Deductions 6/30/2016
LANDER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Assets:
Cash 3 203,935 3 5,238,666 3 8,884,645 $ 843,974
Total Assets 3 203,935 $ 5,238,668 { 8,834,645 $ 843,974
Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 3 203,935 3 5,238,666 3 8,884,645 % 843,974
Total Liabilities $ 203,935 b 5,238,666 $ 8,884,645 $ 843,974
LANDER COUNTY CLERK
Assets:
Cash $ 21,453 5 23,090 3 11,350 $ 33,193
Total Assets 3 21,453 b 23,090 3 11,350 $ 33,193
Liabilities;
Funds Held in Trust 5 21,453 3 23,090 $ 11,350 $ 33,103
Total Liabilities 5 21,453 ] 23,090 3 11,350 $ 33,183
FISH AND GAME FUND
Assets:
Cash 3 9,894 $ - b 530 $ 9,364
Total Assets $ 9,894 $ - $ 530 $ 9,364
Liabilities:
Funds Held in Tiust 5 9,894 3 - 3 530 5 9,364
Totzl Liabilities 9,894 - 530 9,364
STATE OF NEVADA
Assets:
Cash 3 35,467 $ 1,405,946 M 1,378,874 $ 62,539
Total Assets 5 35,467 3 1,405,946 $ 1,378,874 $ 62,539
Liabilities: .
Funds Held in Trust $ 35,467 § 1,405,946 3 1,378,874 $ 62,539
Total Liabilities $ 35,467 $ 1,405,946 § 1,378,874 $ 62,539
RANGE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO., 6
Assets:
Cash $ 137,953 3 16,710 $ 12,181 $ 142,482
Total Assects 3 137,953 $ 16,710 $ 12,181 $ 142 482
Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust $ 137,953 $ 16,710 N 12,181 3 142,482
Total Liabilities $ 137,953 3 16,710 $ 12,181 3 142 482
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LANDER COUNTY :
All Trust and Agency Funds §

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities (Continued) |

Yor the Year Ended June 30, 2016 B

Balance Balance g "

6/30/2015 Additions Deductions 6/30/2016 :

KINGSTON CAPITAL ACQUISITION ,

Assets: E i
Cash 3 27,533 $ 1,602 $ - $ 29,135

Total Assats 5 27,533 3 1,602 3 - $ 29,135 E:

Liabilities: E 3

Funds Held in Trust 3 27,533 $ 1,602 $ s $ 29,135 .

Total Liabilities 5 27,533 [ 1,602 5 - 5 29,135 i

KINGSTON TOWN GENERAT FUND )

Assets; E u
Cash $ 1,100 5 126,264 5 52,783 $ 74,581

Total Assets 3 1,100 $ 126,264 5 52,783 s 74581 g

Liabilities: x

Funds Held in Trust § 1,100 $ 136,264 $ 52,783 ; 74,581 é i
Total Liabilities 3 1,100 $ 126,264 3 52,783 5 74,581

E

KINGSTON VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT ’

Assets: E i

Cash 3 13,923 5 13,093 $ 7,566 $ 19,450 - -

Total Assets g 13,923 5 13,003 3 7,566 S 19,450 £

Liabilities: .

Funds Held in Frust 5 13,923 5 13,093 5 1,566 $ 19,450 B
Total Liabilities 3 13,923 $ 13,093 5 7,566 3 19,450

£

KINGSTON TOWN WATER DISTRICT '

Assels: 5 0

Cash $ 466,992 3 26,627 $ 181,427 5 312,192 -

Total Assets $ 466,997 26,627 $ 181,427 3 312,192 E .

Liabilities: . ' .

Funds Held in Trust 3 466,992 $ 26,627 $ 181,427 $ 312,192 §
Total Liabilitics 3 466,992 5 26,627 3 181,427 $ 312,192

ASSISTANCE TO VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE E |

Assets: -

Cash $ 150 3 920 5 895 $ 175 g

Total Assets $ 150 $ 920 895 5 175 ]

Linbilities: o

Funds Held in Trust $ 150 $ 920 $ 895 $ 175 E '

Total Liabilities 3 150 3 920 $ 895 3 175 1
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LANDER COUNTY
All Trust and Agency Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Balance Balance
6/30/2015 Additions Deductions 6/30/2016
DISTRICT ATTORNEY TRUST ACCOUNT
Assets:
Cash $ 9,418 3 254,144 3 129,778 3 133,734
Total Assets 5 9,418 ) 254,144 $ 129,778 $ 133,784
Liabilities:
Funds Held in Frust $ 9,418 g 254,144 3 128,778 $ 133,784
Tota! Liabilities $ 9,418 g 254,144 3 129,778 5 133,784
INMATE COMMISSARY
Assets:
Cash $ 34,187 $ 93,180 $ 90,363 3 37,004
Total Assets $ 34,187 § 63,180 3 90,363 3 37,004
Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust b 34,187 3 93,180 3 90,363 4 37,004
Total Liabilities 3 34,187 3 93,180 § 90,363 4 37,004
INMATE WELFARE FUND ACCOUNT
Assels:
Cash 5 3,830 $ 2,241 $ 2,121 $ 3,970
Total Assets $ 3,850 3 7,241 3 2,121 $ 3,970
Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust $ 3,850 S 2,241 3 2,121 $ 3,970
'_I‘otal Liabitities $ 3,830 ) 2,241 $ 2,121 $ 3,970
BATTLE MOUNTAIN CEMETERY DISTRICT
Assets:
Cash 3 1 5 12,065 $ 12,065 $ 1
Total Assets $ 1 3 12,065 b 12,065 $ 1
Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust $ 1 § 12,065 3 12,065 b 1
Total Liabilities 5 1 $ 12,065 $ 12,065 5 i
ARGENTA JUSTICE COURT
Assets:
Cash b 6,340 $ 461,912 $ 449,494 8 18,758
Total Assets 5 6,340 3 461,912 % 449,494 3 18,758
Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust $ 6,340 $ 461,912 $ 449,494 $ 18,758
Total Liabilities $ 6,340 b 461,912 3 449,494 $ 18,758
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LANDER COUNTY
All Trust and Agency Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Balance Balance
6/30/2015 Additions Deductions 6/30/2016
AUSTIN JUSTICE COURT
Assels;
Cash b 4,127 $ 75,745 b 79,392 3 480
Total Assets $ 4,127 $ 75,745 $ 79,392 3 480
Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust $ 4,127 3 75,745 5 79,392 $ 480
Total Liabilities $ 4,127 $ 75,745 $ 79,392 b 480
LANDER COUNTY TREASURER DISTRICT
ATTORNEY PUBLIC ADMIN BROWN'S ESTATE
Assets;
Cash $ 30,119 3 3 5 - 3 30,122
Total Assets $ 30,119 k) 3 % - 3 30,122
Liahilities:
Funds Held in Trust 3 30,119 $ 3 $ - b 30,122
Total Liabilities i 30,119 3 3 3 - $ 30,122
LANDER COUNTY TREASURER GENERAL
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Assefs:
Cash 3 115,398 $ 116 $ 20,252 $ 95,262
Total Assets $ 115,398 3 116 8 20,252 3 95,262
Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust $ 115,398 5 116 5 20,252 $ 95,262
Total Liabilitics $ 115,398 3 116 $ 20,252 $ 95,262
LANDER COUNTY TREASURER GENERAL
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #1
Assets!
Cash B 23,672 3 61,885 3 48,418 $ 37,139
Total Assets 23,672 3 61,885 5 48,418 3 37,139
Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust b 23,672 $ 61,885 $ 48,418 3 37,139
Total Liabilities § 23,672 § 61,885 $ 48,418 3 37,139
LANDER COUNTY TREASURER DISTRICT
ATTORNEY PUBLIC ADMIN MAYS ESTATE
Assets:
Cash 3 3,711 3 - $ - 3 3,711
Total Assets § 3,711 5 - 5 - b 3,711
Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 5 3,711 b - 3 - 3 3,711
Total Liabilities 3 3,711 3 - $ - 3 3,711
114
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LANDER COUNTY
All Trust and Agency Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Balance Balance
6/30/2015 Additions Deductions 6/30/2016
ELEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
Assets:
Cesh 3 - 3 205 $ - 3 205
Total Assets 3 - $ 205 $ - $ 205
Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust $ - 3 205 $ - 3 205
Total Liabilities 3 - g 203 3 - 3 205
BATTLE MOUNTAIN WATER AND
SEWER CUSTOMER DEPOSIT ACCOUNT
Assets:
Cash 3 - 3 27,000 $ 6,255 3 20,745
Total Assets $ - $ 27,000 $ 6,255 $ 20,745
Liabilities;
Funds Held in Trust 3 - $ 27,000 3 6,255 $ 20,745
Total Liabilitics 3 - $ 27,000 $ 6,255 3 20,745
TOTAIL - ALL TRUST AND
AGENCY FUNDS
Assets:
Cash 3 1,284.361 $ 12,667,991 3 17,658,945 $ 3,499,060
Total Assets $ 1,284,361 3 12,667,991 3 17,658,945 $ 3,499,060
Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust 3 1,284 361 $ 12,667,991 $ 17,658,945 $ 3,499,060
Total Liabilities $  1,284361 $ 12,667,991 $ 17,658,945 5 3,499,060
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OTHER COMMUNICATIONS FROM INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
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L November 11, 2016.

Independent Audltors’ Report on Internal Control over
Fmancial Reporting and on Compliance and other Matters
- Based on an Audit of Financial Statements -
Perfor med in Accordance with GovemmentAudttmg Stana'ards

The Honorable County Comm1ss10n
Lander County- '
Battle Mountam Nevada '

“We- have audlted in accordance with the audrtlng standards generally accepted in the Urnted States of
- America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
 bythe Comptroller Greneral of the United States, the financial statemients of the governthental activities, the
‘business-type activitics, cach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Lander- County, '
* Nevada, as of and for the year ended June30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which.

collectively comprise the County s bas1c ﬁnancral statements and have issued our report thereon dated

[

VIntern*tl Control over F manclal Reportmg

In planmng and perfonmng our audlt of the financial statements we consrdered Lander County, Nevada s

. internal control over financial reporting (mternal control) to determine the auditing procedures that arc -
“appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of eéxpressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
- not for the purpose of expressing an opinion” on the effectiveness of the County’s infernal control

Accordlngly, we: do not express an op1n1on on the effecnveness of the County s 1nterna1 control

- A defi caency in internal control exrsts when the des1gn or operation of & control does not allow management
" or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,

misstatements on a tlmely basis.” A material wealkness is e deﬁmency, ot combination of deficiencies, in
internal control stich that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial

'  statements will not be prevented, ot detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiéncy is a
- deficiency; or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that i is less severe than a matenal weaknesa C

yet 1rnportant enough to rnent attentron by those charged w1th governanee

- Our consrderatlon of mternal control was for the lnmted purpose descrrbed in the ﬁrst paragraph of this.
- gection and was not desi gned toidentify all deﬁ(;lenores ininternal control that mlght be material wealcnesses
Coor s1gnlﬁcant deﬁc1enc1es and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were

not identified. - Given these’ lnnrtanons during out audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal -
control that we consider to be material weaknesses However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been. 1dent1f1ed We did identify certain deficienciés in 1nternal control, desciibed in the accompanymg .

_Schedule of Fmdmgs and Reconnnendatlons that we consider to be s1gn1ﬁca11t deﬁc1encres

- 2016- 001' © Bank Reconcﬂranon Review

2016-002- . Golf Course Internal Controls. - S
.2016-003 © - Segregation of Duties in Small Departments e
2016-004 - Segre,qatlon of Duties in Treasurer’s Ofﬂce . HE

201 6-005 Credlt Card Internal Controls 3
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* Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free from -

material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
- -contracts, and: grant agreements, noncomphance with ‘which could have a direct and materizal effect on the
‘determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
‘provisions was nof an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such’an .opinion. The results

~of our tests disclosed no instances of noncomphance or other matters that are required to be: reported under.

-Governmenr Audzrmg S tandam’s

. Lander Co’un’ty, Nevada’s Response to Findings :

' Lander County, Nevada 8 response to the findings 1dent1ﬁed in our aud1t is desorlbed in the acoompanymg‘

- corrective action plan. Lander County’s response was hot subjected to the auditing procedures apphes in the
- audit of the financial statements and accordmgly, we express ne; Opmlon on it.

.Purpose of thls Report

~ 'The purpose of thls report is solely to desonbe the scope ' of qur testmg of mternal eontrol and comph ance and

“the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control ot -
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with GovernmentAudztmg ‘

Standards in considering the entity’s internal oontrol and comphance Acoordmgly, t}ns commumoatlon isnot
sultable for any other purpose : ,

'

., f 1&;1;/:4/’ p
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HlntonBurdlck, PLLC
St. George, Utah ~ ~
November 11, 2016
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. ‘ I Independent Audltors Report on Comphance
o o With Statutes and Administrativé Code in Accordance with
o - ' ' NRS 354. 624(4)((‘) and 354.6241 '

The Honorable County Comm1ss1oners
. Lander County -
Battle Mountam Nevada

‘We have audw.ted the ba31c ﬁnancml statements of Lander County, Nevada, for fhe yéar ended T une 30 2016, -
and have issued otr report thereon dated November 11, 2016. Our zudit also included test work on Lander
County, Nevada’s compliance with selected reqmrements 1dent1ﬁed in the State of Nevada Revised Stdtutes
(NRS) mcludlug, but not 11m1ted to NRS secuon 354 624 and section 354.6241. :

The management of Lauder County, Nevada is responszble for the County 8 compl:auce with tho NRS and

regulations (Nevada Administrative Codg). Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance with -

those requirements based on our audit and make specific statements regarding funds established and the status
. of pnor year ﬁndings and recommendatlons accordingly, we meke the followmg staternents:

" The County did not have any prior year comphance ﬁndmgs that: needed to be resolved We noted two S
ftew instances of noncompliance during the fiscal year 20 16 which are desonbed in'the. accompanymg
Schedule of Fmdmgs and Recommondauous

+ List of Refunds .
Budgetary Comphance '

2016:006
"7-20 16-007

' 'Lander County has estabhshed several funds in acoordance W1th NRS 354 624 as follows

Funds whose balance is requ1red to be used only for specific purposes or cartied forward to the
succeedmg fiscal year in any de&gnated amount : :

F1duo1ary Funds: . :
. Domestic Violence o ngston Town
Kingston Capital Acquisitions . Kingston Water D1strlct

Kingston Vol. Fire Dept.
Austin Fair and Recreation

- Sewer & Water District #2

. Lander County School Dlstrmt
Fish and Game :

Argenta TV Maint. District

Batile Mountain Fair clnd Recr eat1011
'Hospltal District

State of Nevada

Range Improvement #6 Trust
Lander County Clerk ~ District Attorney Trust Account
Inmate Commissary Inmate Welfare Fund Account
Argenta Justice Court . Battle Mountain Cemetery District

. Austin Justice Court . Eleventh Judicial District Court
" Lander County Treasuter District Attorney Public-Admin Brown’s Estate
Lander County Tteasurer General Improvement District
Lander County Treasurer General Improvement D1stnot #1

. S 1
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Lander County Treasurer District Attorney Public Admin May’s Estate
Battle Mountain Water and Sewer Customer Deposit Accoiint '

Speclal Revenue Funds: - b ;
‘Road and Bridge o Indigent

State Medicdl Indigent - - Aged Services =~ -
- Lander County Landfill' =~ Lander County Adrports -
© . Lander Economic Develop,~ ~ DOE Nuclear Repository
- Regional Street & Hwy ~ Town of Austin
Town of Battle Mountarn " Cultire & Recreation
- Reserve - - - TitleTIT SRS/CRA
_ Admio Assessment Fees - Getielic Marker Testing
~ Forensic Services - . District. Dmug Court
i - Court Facility Fees Juvenile Admin Assessment
‘Mine Map Fees Technology Fees
Agncultural Extenston ' : a
Capttal Project Funds , - R o
- Austin Capital Acqulsrtlons ~ Equipment/Building Replacement
Capttal Acqutsttron S Battle Mountain Capital Acqu151tton
CCp Lo : Emergency Maintgnance '

- Airport Capital Improtfement ‘Court Facilities Capital

- Lander County appears to be us1ng the above listed funds expressly for the purposes for whlch they WEBI‘B.

- created in accordance with NRS 354.624. The funds are being administered in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles and the reserves, as applicable, appear reasonable and necessary to carry out

- the purposes of the funds. Sources of revenues. avaﬂable and fund bahnces are reﬂected in the individual- -~

_ fund ﬁnanclal Statements

 NRS 354. 624 requires that a schedule of all fecs nnposed by the County whlch are sub]ect to the provrslons ot‘ .

RS 354.5989 be presented See pacre 124

We conducted our audlt in accordance Wlth audltmg standards generally accepted m the United Staies of
Americaand GavernmentAttdttzng Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuratice about whether material

. noncomphiance with the requifements referred to above occurred An aucht includes eamining, on a fest
basis, evidence about the County s comphance with thoser requn'ements We beheve that our audit prowdes a
‘ reasonable basis for our opnnon S : :

In our opnnon Lander County complied, in all materral respects W1th the reqmretnents rdentlﬁed above for

the year ended June 30,2016. .

This report is 1ntended solely for the use of Lander County, the State of Nevada, and other audit agencies and
‘should hot be used for any other purpose. This restriction.is not intended to limit the dlstrrbutron of this

‘report Whtch upon acceptance by Lander County is a matter of pubhc record.”

W!‘Z«

HintonBurdick, PLLC
St. George, Utah.
November 11, 2016
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LANDER COUNTY
Nevada Revised Statute 354.6113
For the Year Ended June 30,2016

The County created the CCP (Construction of Capital Projects) Fund under the authority of NRS 354.6113,
This statute provides for construction of capital projects. The following are affirmative statements pertaining
to the items required by the statute,

Interest earned on the cash balance of the fund was credited to the fund.

The money in the fund was used only for the construction of capital projects which were included in
the plan for capital improvement of the local government prepared pursuant to NRS 350.013.

In fiscal year 2016, the money from the fund was used to construct the County Administration
Complex building, recreation center project, golf course project, water and sewer projects, airport
projects, flood levee project, and various paving projects as specified in the capital improvement plan
for the County.

According to the fiscal year 2017 approved budget, the only money to be deposited in the fund next
vear will be interest earnings on investment balances.

In the next fiscal year, the County plans to use the remaining funds to continue construction on the
recreation center project, water and sewer projects, airport projects, and flood levee project.

According to the fiscal year 2017 approved budget, there is no planned accumulation of money in the
fund. :

The County complied with the provisions of NRS 354.6113,

123




LANDER COUNTY
Schedule of Fees Imposed Subject to the Provision of NRS 354.5989
Limitation on Fees for Busines